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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2019 of the Company.

Upon successful commencement of operation of the
photovoltaic power generation projects in the second
half of 2016, the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
collectively referred as the “Group”) have developed rapidly
in the past years; however, our business expansion slowed
down and revenue declined due to the unfavourable policies
and weather in 2019. The profit attributable to the owners
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 (the “current year”) decreased by approximately
32.8% to approximately RMB296.9 million from RMB442.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately RMB885.4 million, 60.0% of which was
generated from investment, construction and operation of
photovoltaic power generation projects (the “Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business”). In order to strengthen
the sustainable development, the Company has undergone
strategic transformation in the previous year by acquiring
the leased photovoltaic power generation equipment for the
operation of photovoltaic business since the commencement
of the grid-connected project in 2016 and turning it to our
self-owned equipment. Given the market is increasingly
competitive, the transformation will be beneficial to the Group
to strengthen its leading position in the photovoltaic power
industry, assert its dominance and is conducive to healthy and
stable development of the project in the long run. In the future,
the Company will explore other diversified investment and
development opportunities and maximise the shareholder’s
interest in addition to contributing to the society.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The photovoltaic industry in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") has currently reached the climax in terms of output
capacity and installed capacity. In 2017, the newly installed
capacity of photovoltaic power generation throughout the
year achieved an unprecedented record of 53GW, resulting
in an expanding subsidy gap. The National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC (“NDRC"), the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC (“Ministry of Finance”) and the National
Energy Administration ("NEA") thus jointly issued the notice
in relation to photovoltaic power generation in 2018 (B =
T \FHRAREEEHEIERMA) (the “531 New Policy”) to
prevent the disorganised industry development. Over a year of
implementation, the 531 New Policy has had significant impact
on the photovoltaic industry.
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According to the requirements of the 531 New Policy,
distributed photovoltaic power plants with a scale of
approximately 10 million kW were scheduled for construction
whereas no construction was scheduled for normal
photovoltaic power stations in 2018. Therefore, according to
the overall statistics, newly installed capacity of photovoltaic
power generation has significantly declined. Since 2019, the
PRC has successively issued several documents with greater
impact on the photovoltaic industry:

MAIN FEATURES OF 2019 NEW POLICY

(1) The key features of the new photovoltaic policy is to
exert the market influence on resources allocation.
In addition to photovoltaic poverty alleviation and
household photovoltaic system, the new policy also
provides that other photovoltaic power generation
projects which require state subsidy, in principle, have
to be competed for allocation, where state-subsidised
projects and tariff will be determined through
declaration by project owners and competition.

(2) In 2019, the domestic photovoltaic power generation
market has entered a new stage, in which various
project models such as subsidy-free grid parity,
competition for state subsidy allocation and stock
project construction co-existed. The newly issued
policy bolsters the upstream development in the
manufacturing industry, eliminates the less competitive
market players from the stronger ones in the industry
and advocates cost and electricity subsidy reduction
through reasonably increase of scale by price
competition.

According to the latest statistics published by the National
Energy Administration, the newly installed capacity of
photovoltaic power generation in the PRC reached 30.11
million kW in 2019, representing a decrease of 31.6% as
compared to that of the corresponding period in 2018, which
was mainly attributable to the change in policy on the subsidy
of photovoltaic power generation in 2019; whereas one of the
primary reasons for this development was large subsidy gap
in the renewable energy generation. With a significant drop
in the renewable energy generation cost, the mission of state
subsidy for onshore wind farms, photovoltaic power plants and
industrial and commercial distributed photovoltaic plants has
been basically completed.
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NOTICE ON SUBSIDY IN 2020

The Ministry of Finance has issued a total of seven subsidy
catalogues for now. Currently, subsidy entitlement is only
available for projects registered in the subsidy catalogues. The
latest notice of the Administrative Measures on the additional
subsidies on Renewable Energy Electricity Prices (the “2020
Administrative Measures”) concerning the administrative
measure of renewable energy projects indicates that, prior to
the issue of the 2020 Administrative Measures, any renewable
energy generation projects which require subsidy are subject
to requirement of competent authority of national energy and
shall be included in the list of subsidised projects upon approval
by power grid enterprises. The Company has classified its
existing projects as photovoltaic projects prior to issue of the
2020 Administrative Measures, and it is expected the existing
photovoltaic project of the Group would be included in the
list of subsidised projects once the approval of the State Grid
Corporation of China is obtained and would receive subsidy in
accordance with the 2020 Administrative Measures.

PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER GENERATION,
OUR FUTURE WAY OUT

Over years of development, the PRC has witnessed different
stages of photovoltaic power generation from starting up,
industrialisation to large-scale production. However, it is
difficult to dislodge the historical baggage before entering
the grid parity era along with the increasing scale of installed
capacity and expanding subsidy gap in the renewable energy
generation. According to the market research in the industry
sector, the subsidy gap will increase to RMB228.0 billion
(US$33.2 billion) at the end of 2019 after taking account
into projects other than the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
Catalogue (the “Catalogue”). In 2035, the cumulative
subsidy gap of all projects will escalate to RMB1.4 trillion
(approximately US$203.0 billion). In view of the present
situation, the worsening problems of high non-technical cost
of projects and larger financial burden on enterprises will
directly affect photovoltaic power grid parity and the market
competitiveness. It is estimated that the state subsidy will no
longer be available for onshore wind farms, photovoltaic power
plants and industrial and commercial distributed photovoltaic
power plants in 2021.

In general, the photovoltaic power generation projects in
recent years have been facing unstable policy environment,
wide involvement and complex trading model. Currently,
various new policies have been implemented. For granting the
subsidy based on the previous tariff documents, operators of
photovoltaic power projects are required to fully connecting
its projects to the power grid in accordance with policy
requirements of the PRC. The Group has always been vigilant
to relevant polices, followed the relevant requirements of the
PRC and make corresponding adjustments to future investment
strategy when necessary.
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RISKS MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FORTIFICATION

In the coming year, the Group will further fortify its risk
management and internal control, integrate the risk
management and internal control with its daily operation
and improve the operation safety of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business. The management actively participated in
and established the relevant management team to ensure rules
and regulations are complied with and internal controls are
carried out properly. In 2020, the Group will further optimise
our systems, procedures and incentives measures, etc. to
promote our vitality and economic efficiency and increase our
profitability.

In terms of the business of the sales of lighting products
including portable lighting products, shades for lamps and
furniture sets and other home accessory products (the
“Lighting Products Business”), additional tariffs imposed
by the United States and intensified competition in principal
markets will have adverse effect on the business. We will
continue to strengthen our internal management and cost
control, and set up corresponding strategies based on the
prevailing market condition.

In 2020, the Company will keep abreast of the industry trends
and pay close attention to the legal and investment risks arising
from new policies, and control and cope with the same in
addition to gradually adopting to the new trend. The Company
will also continuously improve its technology standard and
the management level on legal risk to ensure our projects are
in compliance with the laws and requirements and achieve
efficient management and operation. Meanwhile, to realise
long-term and steady development, the Company has been
continuously seeking to explore new investment projects and
channels, and may undergo transformation and open up to
new markets in the future to diversify investment portfolio
and bring higher and more stable investment return for
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to
our staff for their dedicated hard work, and | would also like to
thank all of our shareholders and stakeholders for their strong
support.

Dang Yanbao
Chairman

27 March 2020
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS
The Group are engaged in (i) the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business; and (ii) the Lighting Products Business.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

On 23 April 2019, the NDRC issued the Circular on Improving
the Mechanism for Feed-in-Tariff Rate of Photovoltaic Power
Generation (AR TENXREE LREEBHGIEREMBENRA)
(the “2019 Photovoltaic FiT Notice”) which was effective on
1 July 2019. It sets out the following provisions regarding the
feed-in-tariff rates for utility-scale ground-mounted solar farm
projects:

(1)

the benchmark feed-in-tariff rates have been changed
to guidance rates. The guidance rates for utility-scale
ground-mounted solar farm stations, which are newly
operated in resource zone |, Il and Il and entitled to
national subsidy, are RMB0.40/kWh, RMBO0.45/kWh and
RMBO.55/kWh, respectively (tax included);

the feed-in-tariff rates for newly-operated utility-scale
ground-mounted solar farm projects are in principle
determined by way of market competition and shall not
exceed the guidance rates for the resource zone where
the solar farm project is operated. Upon determination
of the feed-in-tariff rate, the portion within the local
benchmark price of coal-fire power will be settled
by local subsidiaries of the State Grid Corporation of
China and the remaining balance shall be settled by the
National Renewable Energy Development Fund;

where an utility-scale ground-mounted solar farm
project is granted with the national subsidy, but has
not obtained the approval for feed-in-tariff rate, its
applicable feed-in-tariff rate shall either be subject
to provisions of the notice issued by the NDRC,
the Ministry of Finance and the NEA in relation to
photovoltaic power generation in 2018 (AR Z=F— N\
FHREEHHEERAA) (the “2018 Notice”) (if it
is connected to grid on or before 30 June 2019), or the
2019 Photovoltaic FiT Notice (if connected to grid on or
after 1 July 2019); and

for village-level solar power projects for poverty
alleviation which have been included into the
Catalogue, the feed-in-tariff rates for such projects in
resource zone |, Il and Il are unchanged and remain
at RMB0.65/kWh, RMB0.75/kWh and RMBO0.85/kWh,
respectively.
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On 20 January 2020, the Ministry of Finance, the NDRC and
the NEA jointly issued the Several Opinions on Promoting the
Healthy Development of Non-hydro Renewable Energy Power
Generation (FAMME#EIF KA BERREEREERNETE
R (the 2020 Opinion”). Pursuant to the 2020 Opinion, the
PRC government will no longer announce new additions to the
existing Catalogues.

On 20 January 2020, the Ministry of Finance, the NDRC and
the NEA jointly issued the 2020 Administrative Measures
which was effective on 20 January 2020. It sets out additional
measures on providing the subsidies to renewable energy
projects. Particularly:

(1) for the renewable energy generation projects launched
before the issue of the 2020 Administrative Measures,
such projects would be included in the list of subsidised
projects after approval by the power grid enterprises;

(2) for the renewable energy generation projects launched
after the issue of the 2020 Administrative Measures,
the Ministry of Finance shall determine the amount of
subsidies based on the amount of the Renewable Energy
Development Fund, the technological advancement and
the industry development; and

(3) the criteria under which the renewable energy
generation projects would be included in the list of
subsidised projects includes the following: (i) newly
launched projects are required to be counted towards
the total renewable energy generation subsidy for
the year in which the projects are launched. Existing
projects are required to meet the requirements of the
NEA, and be included in the annual construction scale
management according to the scale management
needs; (ii) examination, approval or filing has been
completed in accordance with relevant national
regulations; compliance with the national renewable
energy price policy, and the on-grid electricity price
has been reviewed and approved by the pricing
authority; (iii) the timetable for grid connection of all
the units meets the subsidy requirement; (iv) relevant
examination, approval, filing and grid connection
requirements have been reviewed and approved by the
national renewable energy information management
platform.

The 2019 Photovoltaic FiT Notice does not and is not expected
to affect the Group’s existing Yinchuan Project (defined
below), as the Yinchuan Project commenced operation prior
to the publication of the 2019 Photovoltaic FiT Notice. It is
expected that the Yinchuan Project would be included in
the list of subsidised projects once the approval of the State
Grid Corporation of China is obtained and would receive
subsidy in accordance with the 2020 Opinion and the 2020
Administrative Measures.
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The competition of the global portable lighting products
industry in 2019 remained fierce. The United States portable
lighting products market, which is the principal market of the
lighting products of the Group, has been highly saturated
with numerous firms selling a diverse range of products
manufactured both domestically and internationally.

In relation to the United States-PRC trade war that commenced
since 2018, in December 2019, the United States and the
PRC had reached an agreement on a phase one trade deal.
Nonetheless, the United States will be maintaining 25 percent
tariffs on approximately $250 billion of Chinese imports,
along with 7.5 percent tariffs on approximately $120 billion of
Chinese imports. It is expected that that trading environment
of the lighting products industry between the United States
and the PRC will continue to be challenging.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the business of the
Group has been integrated into two segments, which are
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business and Lighting Products
Business.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, while the Group’s
revenue decreased by approximately 3.6% to approximately
RMB885.4 million, profit attributable to the owners of the
Company decrease by approximately 32.8% to approximately
RMB296.9 million. The decline in profit was mainly due to an
increase in depreciation expenses and finance costs after the
acquisition of the Equipment (defined below) and an increase
in income tax expenses as a result of increased taxation in
connection with the interim dividends distributed during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and the expiry of a tax holiday
of 3-year full exemption that was enjoyed by a subsidiary of the
Company. These negative impacts were partially offset by an
increase in other income.

During the year under review, the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business continued to bring profits to the Group.
At the end of 2019, the photovoltaic power generation output
capacity of the Yinchuan Project had been increased from 350
megawatt in 2017 to 390 megawatt.

In respect of the 350 megawatt photovoltaic power generation
output capacity of the Group’s photovoltaic project in
Yinchuan City (the “Yinchuan Project”), Ningxia Hui
Autonomous Region (“Ningxia”), the PRC, after completion of
the sale and purchase agreement entered into between Ningxia
Baofeng Photovoltaic Power Generation Company Limited*
(FEELHIRESERAA]) ("Baofeng Photovoltaic”), a
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser and Yinchuan Binhe
New Energy Investment Development Co., Ltd* ($8)I|& ¥78E
RIEEFIEAFMRAR]) (the “Vendor”) dated 23 March 2019
("Sale and Purchase Agreement”) in May 2019, Baofeng
Photovoltaic purchased the 350-megawatt photovoltaic power
generation equipment, the ancillary facilities, the materials
in stock, products and accessories of the Yinchuan Project
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(the "Equipment”) at a consideration of approximately
RMB2,398.2 million (tax inclusive), which was subsequently
reduced to approximately RMB2,336.1 million (tax inclusive) in
July 2019 due to the reduction of the VAT rate from 16% to
13% effective on 1 April 2019 pursuant to the Announcement
on Relevant Policies for Deepening Value-Added Tax Reform
(CRAR R ER N EBBBRENAE)) promulgated by
the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and the General Administration of Customs of the PRC.
The Equipment is a set of photovoltaic power generation
equipment which was leased to Baofeng Photovoltaic by the
Vendor since its acquisition of the Equipment and has been
used by the Group in the Yinchuan Project for the photovoltaic
business operations of the Group since the commencement of
the Yinchuan Project in 2016.

In addition, in May 2019, the finance lease arrangement
commenced between Baofeng Photovoltaic as lessee and
Huaxia Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. ((EESBHEEERAA) a

lessor (the “Lessor”) pursuant to the finance lease agreement
dated 23 March 2019 (“Finance Lease Agreement”), under
which the Lessor paid RMB1,700.0 million of the consideration
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement to the Vendor,
upon which it takes ownership of the Equipment. The Lessor
then leases back the Equipment to Baofeng Photovoltaic for
a principal lease amount of RMB1,700.0 million to be paid
by monthly instalments (plus interests) commencing after
a grace period which will expire by 28 January 2021, with
the last payment to be made by 28 January 2031. From the
lease commencement date up to the end of the grace period,
Baofeng Photovoltaic only has to pay interests on the principal
lease amount but does not have to make repayments of the
principal lease amount. The indebtedness and obligations of
Baofeng Photovoltaic under the Finance Lease Agreement are
guaranteed by the Company and secured by a charge over the
entire equity interest in Baofeng Photovoltaic, by a charge over
all receivables arising from the income of the Yinchuan Project
from time to time (other than the amount of tariff adjustment
receivables already assigned by Baofeng Photovoltaic), and by
a charge over all power generation equipment and ancillary
facilities used in the Yinchuan Project, in favour of the Lessor.

As an ancillary arrangement to the acquisition under the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, in May 2019, the Vendor has paid
an amount of RMB300.0 million to Baofeng Photovoltaic in
cash, and in return Baofeng Photovoltaic has assigned the tariff
adjustment receivables in the amount of RMB300.0 million to
the Vendor effective on the date Baofeng Photovoltaic received
the aforesaid cash payment pursuant to the an assignment
agreement dated 23 March 2019 entered into between
Baofeng Photovoltaic and the Vendor (the “Assignment
Agreement”). For details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
the Finance Lease Agreement and the Assignment Agreement,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
25 March 2019 and 30 July 2019, respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Equipment
amounted to approximately RMB1,997.2 million and was
approximately 46.1% of the total assets of the Group.
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The Directors consider that it is beneficial for the Group to
purchase the Equipment pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and the Finance Lease Agreement and the ancillary
security documents for, among others, the following reasons
and on the following bases:

€) the lease agreement between the Vendor and Baofeng
Photovoltaic (the "Existing Lease”) was due to expire
in May 2019. Under the Group’s operation arrangement
of leasing the Equipment for its Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business, such business is subject to the
commercial risks and uncertainties that the Existing
Lease may not be renewed upon expiry or that the rental
may be increased upon renewal of the Existing Lease. If
the Group becomes the owner of the Equipment, such
commercial risks and uncertainties in relation to the
rental of the Equipment can be eliminated;

(b) in the event that the Existing Lease could not be
renewed, the operation and profitability of the
Yinchuan Project will be severely hindered without the
Equipment, and will result in written-down value of the
infrastructure in relation to the Yinchuan Project owned
by the Group. Since the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business has become the main driver of growth of the
Group and the Equipment is of primary significance
to such business, in order to maintain the Group’s
profitability, it is important for the Group to ensure
sustainable and stable operation of the Yinchuan Project
in the long run by securing the continued full operation
of the Equipment;

(c) although there will be finance costs during the lease
term, the Group will at the same time no longer have to
bear rental expenditure on the Equipment as well as the
risks associated with the renewal of the Existing Lease as
mentioned above. Considering that the Equipment has
a useful life of 25 years, after deducting the three years
of use by the Group itself since leasing in May 2016
and following the completion of the lease term, the
Group expects to further enjoy about 10 years of useful
life of the Equipment without any further payment of
finance payments or rent, which will be conducive to
profitability of the Group in the long run.
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As confirmed by the State Grid Corporation of China, for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has generated an
aggregate of 720.5 million kWh power and the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business continued to be the main source of
the revenue of the Group, accounting for approximately 60.0%
(31 December 2018: 59.8%) of the Group’s total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The aggregated power
generated for the year ended 31 December 2019 dropped by
approximately 5.7% to 720.5 million kWh (31 December 2018:
763.8 million kWh) due to a decrease in number of sunny days.
Nevertheless, such impact was offset by an increase in average
unit selling price (tax exclusive) as a result of a reduction of
VAT rate. In addition, the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business was the sole contributor to the profit of the Group,
contributing to approximately 100.3% of the Group’s total
segment profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: 98.7%).

The Group'’s revenue from the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB531.4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 3.2% from the revenue generated for the
corresponding year in 2018 (31 December 2018: RMB549.1
million). The segment profit margin of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business was approximately 66.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: 84.5%),
and the segment profit decreased by approximately 23.9%
to approximately RMB353.2 million (31 December 2018:
RMB464.2 million) which was mainly due to an increase in
depreciation expenses and finance costs after acquisition of the
Equipment.

The Group’s revenue from the Lighting Products Business
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB354.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB369.4 million),
contributing to approximately 40.0% (31 December 2018:
40.2%) of the Group's total revenue, and representing
a decrease of 4.2% from the revenue generated in the
corresponding year in 2018. Excluding the effect of RMB
depreciation against HK$ during the year ended 31 December
2019, the revenue decreased by 9.6% compared to the
corresponding year in 2018. The segment profit margin of
Lighting Products Business turned negative to approximately
-0.3% for the the year ended 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: +1.6%) and there was a segment loss of approximately
RMB1.0 million (31 December 2018: a segment profit of
approximately RMB6.1 million). The segment loss was due
to the additional tariff imposed by the United States, and
continuous keen competition in the principal market of the
lighting products of the Group.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2020, the Board believes that the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business will continue to be the Group’s main
profit contributor. Nonetheless, given that less favourable
policies issued by the government of the PRC in relation
to the photovoltaic power generation industry, the Group
will continue to implement costs control measures in the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business in order to maintain
reasonable returns to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). The Board may conduct a strategic review
on the operations of the Group, identify and evaluate business
opportunities in the other sectors with positive outlook such
as elderly care industry and health care industry in order to
diversify the income stream of the Group for the benefit of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Further to the issue of the 2020 Opinion and the 2020
Administrative Measures, the Board of directors of the
Company (the "Directors”) expects the Yinchuan Project to be
included in the list of subsidized projects. It is expected that the
Group will receive settlements of tariff adjustment receivables
from the PRC government (in which part of them will be paid
to the Lessor under the Finance Lease Agreement).

In 2020, it is expected that the Lighting Products Business
may continue to be adversely affected by the additional tariffs
imposed by the United States due to uncertainty arising from
the United States-PRC trade war and intensified competition in
its principal markets. In case the market competition continues
to intensify, the Group would deploy its resources efficiently
and shift the focus on other segments of the Group so that the
Group will generate long term return to the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Prior to 1 January 2019, United States Dollars (“US$") was
regarded as the functional currency of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements were presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Board consider that as a result of continued focus on the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business in the PRC and the
significant amount of acquisition of the Equipment which
was financed by a source of funding in the PRC, the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates has
changed and it is more appropriate to use Renminbi (“"RMB")
as the functional currency. The presentation currency of the
financial information is also changed to RMB in line with the
change in functional currency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The change in functional and presentation currencies was
accounted for in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates” (“HKAS 21"). The effects of the change in presentation
currency have been accounted for retrospectively with
comparative figures restated. The comparative information
in these audited consolidated financial statements has been
restated to reflect as if RMB has always been the presentation
currency of the Group. The change in functional currency
of the Company was applied prospectively from the date of
change in accordance with HKAS 21.

Segment Information

The Group reported its financial information by two segments:
(i) Photovoltaic Power Generation Business; and (ii) Lighting
Products Business. The table below is an analysis of the Group’s
revenue, segment profit and segment profit margin of its
operation by segment for the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2019, respectively.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of the
Group was derived from the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business and Lighting Products Business amounting to
approximately RMB885.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 3.6% from approximately RMB918.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Revenue derived from the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business amounted to RMB531.4 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 3.2% from approximately
RMB549.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The Photovoltaic Power Generation Business continued to be
the major contributor to the Group’s total revenue. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, while the revenue from
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business was adversely affected
by the decrease in number of sunny days, the impact of
which was offset by an increase in average unit selling price
(tax exclusive) as a result of reduction of VAT rate. Revenue
derived from the Lighting Products Business amounted to
RMB354.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
4.2% from approximately RMB369.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The Lighting Products Business continued
to be impacted by the additional tariff imposed by the United
States and the fierce competition in the market. As a result,
excluding the effect of RMB depreciation against HK$, the
revenue from the Lighting Products Business decreased by
9.6% compared to the corresponding year in 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross
profit of the Group amounted to approximately RMB476.4
million, representing a decrease of approximately 8.5%
from approximately RMB520.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The gross profit margin of the Group
decreased from approximately 56.7% for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately 53.8% for the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease in both gross profit and gross
profit margin of the Group for the year was due to an increase
in costs of sales of approximately 2.8% from approximately
RMB397.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
to approximately RMB409.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total operating
cost increased to approximately RMB86.6 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 1.7% from approximately
RMB88.1 million for the corresponding year in 2018. The
decrease in operating cost was primarily due to a decrease in
tax surcharges and other operating expenses.
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The Group recorded finance costs amounting to approximately
RMB87.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: RMB4.7 million). The increase in finance
costs during the year was mainly due to the interest expenses
and handling charges under the Finance Lease Agreement
and imputed interests arising from the amount due to a
photovoltaic facilities provider.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB296.9 million was recorded for the year ended
31 December 2019, as compared with a profit of approximately
RMB442.0 million attributable to owners of the Company
for the corresponding year in 2018. The decline in profit was
mainly due to an increase in depreciation expenses and finance
costs after the acquisition of the Equipment and an increase
in income tax expenses as a result of increased taxation in
connection with the interim dividends declared on 16 August
2019 and the expiry of a tax holiday of 3-year full exemption
that was enjoyed by a subsidiary of the Company. These
negative impacts were partially offset by an increase in other
income. Earnings per share was RMB44.72 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2019, as compared with earnings per
share of RMB72.32 cents for the corresponding year in 2018.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") in early
2020 and the subsequent quarantine measures and travel
restrictions imposed worldwide may have impact on the
Group’s operations. For the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business, the photovoltaic power generation process is not
labour intensive and the daily operation of the solar power
plant has not been affected. As at the date of this annual
report, the Board is not aware of any material adverse
impact on the financial performance of the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business as a result of the outbreak of the
COVID-19.

BE_T-NE+-_A=+—RHILEE £A&£EBHSE
Wﬁ%%%AEMW4%omnm_i NFE+=A
=+—08: AR®4,700,0007T) - ERIH K ERIL
MYEEHARERERZETNAERILFES
LA K% FE A5 3¢ AR R% e 4L 8 P8 BB 2 AR Y FE ST FI S FTER »

BE-_Z—NF+_A=+—BILFE AR5 AR
A (S R 4 A AN R#296,900,0007T » T —Z— )\
FHEFEMNAARES AEBMRFANNAEARE
442,000,0007T ° @ AE A ThE EARAITE R S KB
BERRWEREBEEBEIMENARRERN T — n
FENATAEHERPEHBBARKAA T —HHBA
EHEIN=ZFRHBERMIEN  #mSHE m%
IO o RETH LR EMU AL N5 o
BE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—BILFE ' 5REF A
AREEL44725 > MZE— N\FHEFENZREF
BB AREET2325 -

HMEHREER
—E_EFEYBBENVFEARFES([COVID-19]) -
HREWERE R M IRER G - A%
ER2EBKTE - AR BEEERMS - AR K
BEBETEEAAEAN  ABERERNBEES
BATEE - AAFRAE  EF€WAANBEAEA
JREECOVID-19TM ¥ IR B ES P IERIRATE
g/]/gﬁ /2& °

—E-NEER



For the Lighting Products Business, the production lines of the
suppliers of the Group for lighting products were suspended
for a short period of time after the Chinese new year holidays,
and gradually resumed normal production in March 2020.
Since there are uncertainties about how the pandemic will
evolve as at the date of this annual report, the Board considers
that the financial effects on the Lighting Products Business
cannot be reasonably estimated and will continue to monitor
and assess the impact of COVID-19 on the Lighting Products
Business. The financial impact, if any, will be reflected in the
future financial statements of the Group.

NON-HKFRS MEASURES

To supplement the audited consolidated financial information
of the Group prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard ("HKFRS”), one non-HKFRS measure,
namely the earnings before interest and taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“"EBITDA"), as additional financial measure,
has been presented in this annual report. The EBITDA is
calculated by adding (i) depreciation of property, plant
and equipment; (ii) depreciation for right-of-use assets; (iii)
amortisation of intangible asset; and (iv) finance costs to the
profit before tax. This unaudited non-HKFRS financial measure
should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute for,
measures of the Group’s financial performance prepared
in accordance with HKFRS. In addition, this non-financial
measure may be defined differently from similar terms used
by other companies. The Board believes that the presentation
of non-HKFRS measures when shown in conjunction with the
corresponding HKFRS measures provides useful information
to Shareholders and the Board regarding financial and
business trends relating to its financial condition and results
of operations. The Board also believes that the non-HKFRS
measures are appropriate for evaluating the Group’s operating
performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the Group’s
non-HKFRS financial measures for year ended 31 December
2019 and the corresponding year in 2018 to the nearest
measures prepared in accordance with HKFRS:

Reconciliation of profit before taxation
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to EBITDA:
Profit before tax RELATRE R 333,084 449,852
Add: oo
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BEREETE
and equipment 64,724 9,048
Depreciation for right-of-use assets TREEENE 3,212 -
Amortisation of intangible asset B BN 85 81
Finance costs B 5 & A 87,399 4,712
EBITDA EBITDA 488,504 463,693

For the year ended 31 December 2019, EBITDA of the
Company was approximately RMB488.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately 5.4% from approximately
RMB463.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
increase of the EBITDA was mainly due to a decrease in leasing
expenses under Existing Lease and other operating expenses.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were approximately RMB183.8 million, representing an
increase of 153.1% from approximately RMB72.6 million as
at 31 December 2018. This was mainly due to the net effect
of cash of RMB300,000,000 received from the Vendor under
the Assignment Agreement, payment of interim dividend and
payments of interests and handling charges under the Finance
Lease Agreement during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s primary
source of funding included cash generated from its operating
activities and interest bearing borrowing.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total interest
bearing borrowing of RMB1,665.5 million which represents the
finance lease obligation under the Finance Lease Agreement,
for a principal lease amount of RMB1,700.0 million to be paid
by monthly instalments (plus interests) commencing after a
grace period which will expire by 28 January 2021, with the last
payment to be made by 28 January 2031. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had no borrowing. The Group’s current ratio
(current asset divided by current liabilities) was 14.8 times
as at 31 December 2019, increased from 9.5 times as at 31
December 2018 which was mainly due to the increase in trade
and other receivables contract assets and cash received under
the Assignment Agreement.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil). During the year ended 31 December 2019, an interim
dividend of 20 HK cents (equivalent to RMB18 cent) per share
amounting to approximately RMB119.5 million was paid to the
Shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to Shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of (i) net debt,
which includes the interest bearing borrowing and net cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits, and (ii) equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued capital
and reserves. As at 31 December 2019, net gearing ratio was
90.4% (31 December 2018: net cash in excess of debts). This
ratio is based on interest bearing borrowing and bills payable
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposit
divided by total equity.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group
has no bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2018, bills payable
amounting to RMB1.3 million were secured by bank deposits
of RMB1.3 million. There was no bill payable and pledged bank
deposit as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the other interest bearing borrowing
which represents the finance lease obligation under the
Finance Lease Agreement amounted to RMB1,665.5 million
(31 December 2018: Nil), which carried interests at 5.978%
(31 December 2018: Nil). It was guaranteed by the Company
and secured by a charge over the entire equity interest in
Baofeng Photovoltaic, by a charge over all receivables arising
from the income of the Yinchuan Project from time to time
(other than the amount of tariff adjustment receivables already
assigned by Baofeng Photovoltaic), and by a charge over all
power generation equipment and ancillary facilities used in the
Yinchuan Project, in favour of the Lessor (31 December 2018:
Nil).
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were mainly held in Renminbi, US dollars and HK
dollars.

The Directors shall review the capital structure regularly, taking
into account the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based
on recommendations of the Board, the Group will maintain an
appropriate capital structure accordingly.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors’ fees are determined by the Board as authorised
by the Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board
shall consider the recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Company (“Remuneration Committee”)
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. Each executive
Director may also receive a year-end bonus in respect of each
financial year. The amount of such bonus will be determined
by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a total of nine
(31 December 2018: nine) Directors and employed 192 (31
December 2018: 214) employees. Total staff costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately RMB54.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: RMB52.2 million). The Group’s remuneration policies
were determined with reference to the performance,
qualification and experience of individual employee, as well
as the results of the Group and the market conditions. The
Group also provided discretionary bonus, medical insurance
and provident fund to employees. The Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 21
June 2012, under which the Company can grant options to,
among others, employees of the Group to subscribe for shares
of the Company (“Shares”) for rewarding them for their
contributions to the Group and providing incentives to them to
optimise their future contributions to the Group. Up to the 31
December 2019, no share option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap. 485) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those employees
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs with the
maximum monthly amount of HK$1,500 to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified range of payroll costs to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the United States of America
operate defined contribution schemes. Contributions to the
defined contribution schemes are made at a certain percentage
of the employee’s payroll.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group
did not have any contingent liability.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Business Review —
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business”, the Group did not
have any other significant investments as at 31 December
2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2019. In the event that the Group
is engaged in any plan for material investments or capital
assets, the Company will make announcement(s) and comply
with relevant rules under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) as and when appropriate.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures by the Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, no bank deposits (31 December
2018: RMB1.3 million) were pledged to a bank for issue of
bills payable. The Group’s land and buildings with carrying
value of RMBO0.6 million (31 December 2018: RMBO0.6 million)
were pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group. In addition, charges were created over (i) the
entire equity interest in Baofeng Photovoltaic; (ii) all receivables
arising from the income of the Yinchuan Project from time to
time (other than the amount of tariff adjustment receivables
already assigned by Baofeng Photovoltaic); and (iii) all power
generation equipment and ancillary facilities used in the
Yinchuan Project, in favour of the Lessor for the obligations of
Baofeng Photovoltaic under the Finance Lease Agreement.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year under review, a significant part of revenue
of the Group borrowing under the Finance Lease Agreement
were denominated in Renminbi while the Group has
transactions invoiced in US dollars and bank balances and
cash denominated in HK dollars, and accordingly the Group
was exposed to foreign exchange risk. Save as disclosed
herein, the amounts of other foreign currencies involved in
the Group’s operation for the year ended 31 December 2019
were insignificant. The Group did not have a foreign currency
hedging policy and did not employ any financial instrument
for hedging purpose during the year ended 31 December
2019. However, the management monitored foreign exchange
exposure closely to keep the net exposure to an acceptable
level.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’'s capital commitment
amounted to approximately RMB2.7 million (31 December
2018: RMB13.3 million) in respect of property, plant and
equipment contracted but not provided for.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dang Yanbao (2Z¥), aged 47, is currently the
Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).
Mr. Dang was appointed as executive Director of the Company
with effect from 30 January 2016 and as the Chairman of the
Board with effect from 19 February 2016. He is an experienced
Chinese businessman and currently the chairman of the board
of directors of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (&
FUREBRMD AR AQF) ("Baofeng Energy”), which was
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600989) in
May 2019. The subsidiaries of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group
Co., Ltd.* (EEETLREERMKHBRAF]) include a number
of companies engaged in the coal and energy sector, such as
Ningxia East Step Environmental Protection Technology Co.,
Ltd. (EERZRERZ AR AE]), Ningxia Baofeng Energy
Group Coal Coking Limited* (22 &Lt REBRELERA
A]), Ningxia Baofeng Group Tar Hydrogenation Limited (£
EUEBELBMEABMRAF]), Ning Xia Fengda Fine Chemical
Co., Ltd. (FE =4I T AR 2 7A]) and Ningxia Baofeng
Group Hongsi Coal Mining Co., Ltd.* (EEE Y LB MK
#EMR 2 7)). He graduated at Ningxia University in July 1996
and was awarded an Executive Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from Peking University in July 2007. Mr. Dang
held several public offices in China, including the vice president
of the second China Charity Alliance (TBZZEH 4 €)
since 2019, vice president of the Federation of Industry and
Commerce of Ningxia (BFE T ¥4 2 &£ %) and counselor
for the People’s Government of Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region.

Mr. Dang is the sole shareholder of Fung Teng which is
interested in 456,150,000 Shares (representing approximately
68.71% of the total issued share capital of the Company). He
is also a director of Fung Teng.

Mr. Dang is the uncle of Mr. Dang Zidong, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Dang Zidong (B B X), aged 30, is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. He is also a director of
subsidiaries of the Group namely Jing Pai Management
LTD.* (RIAEIEAPR A7), Stand Nice Limited and Honest
Joy International Limited). He graduated from Beijing Geely
University JE =& FAE) in 2012 with a degree in industry
and business administration. He was the general manager
of Ningxia Huixin Microfinance Co., Ltd.* (BEE[E(Z/NEE
AR A A before joining the Group. Mr. Dang Zidong was
previously responsible for sales in Ningxia Baofeng Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (EEEZgREERMKH AR AR and had
held the position of manager of marketing and planning
department in Huifengxiang Commercial Holdings Co., Ltd.*
CELEMETRABRAA]). He was appointed as executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2016.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Dang Zidong is the nephew of Mr. Dang Yanbao, the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dang
Yanbao is the sole shareholder and a director of Fung Teng,
the controlling Shareholder, which is interested in 456,150,000
Shares (representing approximately 68.71% of the total issued
share capital of the Company).

Mr. Liu Yuanguan (2|7t %), aged 53, is currently the chief
executive officer of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.*
(ZEBELZRREBERMHAERDAF). He is also a director of
subsidiaries of the Group, namely Ningxia Baofeng Electric
Power Operation Management Co., Ltd.* (EEBYE /&
ZEIEHR/AR]) and Ningxia Baofeng Photovoltaic Power
Generation Company Limited* (EEZEL W REEARELQ
B]). He is a veteran in the coal mining, energy and chemical
industry with more than 32 years of experience. Mr. Liu holds
the title of senior engineer and has a master’s degree from
Xi'an University of Science and Technology awarded in July
2005 and a bachelor degree from China University of Mining
and Technology (formerly known as China Institute of Mining
and Technology) awarded in July 1987. He was appointed as
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 January
2016.

Mr. Gao Jianjun (§#E), aged 45, is currently the vice
president of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (&
EELgREERMHABRAE). Mr. Gao has over 24 years
of experience in the coal mining, crude oil and energy
industry. Mr. Gao graduated at Yan'an University in chemical
engineering technology in July 2013, and holds the title of
engineer. He was appointed as executive Director of the

Company with effect from 30 January 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Hoo (28Z), aged 58, obtained a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1987. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England
and Wales in 1995. Mr. Cheng has over 29 years' experience
in the practice of law. He is a co-founder and senior partner
of Nixon Peabody CWL. He was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy (8#3%%), aged 50, is an
investment banker with over 21 years of corporate finance
experience in Hong Kong and is responsible for handling
corporate finance transactions, including initial public offering
and mergers and acquisitions activities. He graduated from
the University of London with a Bachelor of Science degree in
August 1992. He was appointed as non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 26 September 2016.

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (H# ), aged 64, is currently
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”), and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He
has nearly 43 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and
consultancy practice. In 1977, He joined Price Waterhouse,
and then joined Klynveld Main Goerdeler and Morgan Bank.
He founded his own accounting and consulting firm in 1985.
His firm then merged with Hong Kong Grant Thornton in 1990
and was responsible for the development of the firm’s business
in the PRC thereafter and stationed in Beijing for seven years
since then. From 2001 to 2003, he worked in a local bank and
participated in the bank’s mergers and acquisitions business.
Since 2003, he has been working at his own accounting and
consulting firm and provided professional services for local and
international companies.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony holds a doctorate degree in
Philosophy and a master degree in Business Administration,
both from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2016.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony is currently an independent
non-executive director of Ourgame International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 6899), which is listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
He was previously an independent non-executive director of
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102) and Melco
International Development Limited (stock code: 200), which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, Entertainment Gaming Asia
Inc., a company listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market, and an
independent director of Alpha Peak Leisure Inc., a company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange Inc.
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Mr. Xia Zuoquan (E{£ &), aged 56, is currently a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He studied computer science
in Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering* (1t 5 8ff] &
EBT) (now known as University of Science & Technology of
Beijing* (AL mEHE K E)) from 1985 to 1987 and he graduated
from Guanghua School of Management of Peking University
with an MBA in 2007. Mr. Xia worked in the Hubei branch of
The People’s Insurance Company* (B A R{RE A R]) and
joined Shenzhen BYD Battery Company Limited in 1997. Mr.
Xia held positions as an executive director and a vice president
of BYD Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1211) and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002594). Mr. Xia is currently a non-executive
director of the BYD Company Limited and an independent
non-executive director of China YuHua Education Corporation
Limited (stock code: 6169), both companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Xia is also currently the chairman of
Shenzhen Zhengxuan Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd.* (&3l
TILEF R EBR A A, the chairman of Annuo Youda Gene
Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd.* (ZFAEBEERRE (ItR) AR
‘A7), director of Shenzhen UniFortune Supply Chain Service
Co., Ltd.* (RYITE & T EHEEEREFR N AF]), director
of Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Corp.* (RIITELIREIRA
fR A 7]) and director of Guangdong Beizhi Cepin Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EREEREMEEEHEBRMDERAF).
He was appointed as independent non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Guo Xuewen (ZB2 ), aged 54, is currently the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He is currently
the chief executive officer of Shenzhen MY Capital Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (FIXKFEEREEEEFRAA).
He was a partner of Heidrick & Struggles, a consulting firm in
the United States of America, and previously founded Beijing
Viewhigh Technologies Co., Ltd.* (It REFEERIE AR A A)
and served as its chairman. Mr. Guo graduated from Tsinghua
University and holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Warwick in the United Kingdom
and a doctorate degree from the University of East Anglia
in the United Kingdom. He was appointed as independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 19
February 2016.

* For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Sheung Chi (FRE ), aged 41, is the chief financial
officer of the Company. He joined the Group in January 2017
and is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Chan has over 16 years of experience in the financial
industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Accounting and Finance) Degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jiao Yingchen (£&/R), aged 37, is currently the
company secretary of the Company. She is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of London and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She holds a bachelor degree from the
University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign and a master degree
in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Jiao has over 12 years of experience in company
secretary and related fields for listed companies. Ms. Jiao was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 4 October 2016.
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The Company endeavors to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance for the enhancement of its Shareholders’
value and provide transparency, accountability and
independence. The Company has complied with the required
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019,
except for the following:

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, independent non-executive Directors and other non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings to gain
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
Shareholders. For the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Dang
Yanbao, the chairman of the Board and Mr. Xia Zuoquan did
not attend the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 April 2019 due to other business engagements.

Under code provision C.2.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, an issuer should have an internal audit function. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company engaged an
external accounting firm in the PRC to carry out internal audit
to a subsidiary of the Company involving in the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business, nonetheless, the Company did not
have an internal audit function for the entire Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Taking into account the size
and complexity of the operations of the Group, the Company
considers that the existing organisation structure and close
supervision by the management can maintain sufficient risk
management and internal control of the Group. However, the
Board will review the need to set up an internal audit function
from time to time and may set up an internal audit team if the
need arises.

Save as disclosed above, the Board considers that the Company
had complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
in securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiry, each
Director confirms that during his tenure in the year ended 31
December 2019, he had fully complied with the required code
of conduct and there was no event of non-compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and
monitoring the business and performance of the Group.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. The Chairman of the Board
is Mr. Dang Yanbao and the chief executive officer of the
Company is Mr. Dang Zidong, and they separately exercised the
roles and functions of the Chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer during the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
nine Directors, consisting of four executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, who are set out as follows:

Mr. Dang Yanbao (Chairman of the Board and chairman of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Dang Zidong (chief executive officer)

Mr. Liu Yuanguan

Mr. Gao Jianjun

Mr. Cheng Hoo
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy

Mr. Xia Zuoquan (member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. Guo Xuewen (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from time
to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 28 of this report.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each independent non-executive Director
who served his term of office during the year ended 31
December 2019 pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

TEHES ER)ERAT

Exg

EXQREAKEERRELE EEAKERRNER
AEBEBNERR - EFERAKEAEERNZE
MREAMEETREAEENSREEE -EFE
FREEBRLE  ARRITREBHA/EERELE 1
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=1—BLLFE BEDHIT
FEESTFRITREE 2 A6 RIEE -

RAREBE  EECHEHNLBEZAR - BIENE
HITEE MEAFRTEEL BB IFNTES
AT

EEENE (EFOTFERIEAZESTR)

RERELE(TTRARE)
BLERE
BEESLE

BxiEE
@kt

HE)
EMEEL(FR

ZEEKER)

BEXRE(FHWZESTEARELZEGRIESR
ZEEXKE8)

BE2RE(FRZES  EEZEERFHZES
ZEETFEURIREZRE REFH

il

Y

LINEERERERB D) TR ARARE LR
AN 2 A A RIBAT E - A ARBAT
TR LT AR R RRE S B FTES -

EFRENE 2 HOBERAREE24F28E 2 [
SRBREREREFSHE -

ARFEEESEARBE-_Z—hF+=-A=+—H
I FEEENBIFRTESRIE EHRRAREEHL
BB M FEERE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for three years. The two non-
executive Directors have signed an appointment letter with
the Company for two years and three years, respectively.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for two years. All
the Directors and the Company are required to give three
months’ notice in writing to the other party for termination
of the service agreement/appointment letter. All the Directors
are appointed for a specific term and subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

Board meeting, Committee meeting and Annual General

Meeting/Extraordinary General Meeting in 2019

The Board has held Board meetings at approximately quarterly
intervals with participation by a majority of Directors. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, five Board meetings, three
Audit Committee meetings, one Remuneration Committee
meeting and one Nomination Committee meeting were held.
One extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") was held during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The attendance record of
each Director at the Board meeting(s), committee meeting(s)
and annual general meeting(s) during the financial year are set
out below:

Name of Directors
Executive Directors H172%
Mr. Dang Yanbao (Chairman of the Board and ~ EEB % (EESTRER

chairman of the Nomination Committee) BEZEETR) N
Mr. Dang Zidong (chief executive officer) EERRL (RS N
Mr. Liu Yuanguan BnEtE 7
Mr. Gao Jianjun BESLE i
Non-executive Directors FiiEE
Mr. Cheng Hoo EE SR "
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy ERRAE [
Independent Non-executive Directors BUknEZ
Mr. Xia Zuoguan Btk 0
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (chairman of ifi = B

the Audit Committee) (BFZE51R) 0
Mr. Guo Xuewen (chairman of the gETEL

Remuneration Committee) (BEHZEEEE) n
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had,
at all times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules of
having at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one
independent non-executive Director, being Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, possessing appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each independent non-executive Director
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been given to all
Directors at least 14 days before the date of a meeting and
reasonable notices have been given for other Board and
committee meetings.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least three days
before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details
of matters considered and decisions reached are duly kept
by the company secretary and opened for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by the Directors.

The Company’s articles of association contains provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

The Chairman has held a meeting with all independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ continuous training and professional
development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Up to the date
of this report, all the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations.

The Company has arranged a Directors’ training to all Directors
to provide updates on the Listing Rules, which was held on 12
July 2019 and all Directors had participated in such Directors
training.

The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dang Yanbao EEE%E
Mr. Dang Zidong EaREAE

Mr. Liu Yuanguan BlE R E

Mr. Gao Jianjun mEERE
Non-executive Directors FHMITEE

Mr. Cheng Hoo Bz A

Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy EER L
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHNTESE
Mr. Xia Zuoquan BElrzafksE

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony A#EELT

Mr. Guo Xuewen R kA
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read relevant materials
in relation to

the business or
directors’ duties
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YesH

YesH
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YesH
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YesH

Annual Report 2019 —B—hEFH

33



BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the above committees are
posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee was established on 21 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which have been updated from
time to time to align with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management system of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company engaged an external accounting
firm in the PRC to carry out internal audit to a subsidiary of
the Company involving in the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business and it involves independent reviews of the adequacy
and effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
systems. On the other hand, the risk management and internal
controls are also self-assessed by the management and
reviewed by the Board on an on-going basis. The professional
accounting firm engaged by the Group will then report to the
Audit Committee in a regular interval.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, members of the
Audit Committee were Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, Mr. Xia
Zuoquan and Mr. Guo Xuewen, all being independent non-
executive Directors, with Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony being the
chairman of the Audit Committee. In 2019, three meetings
were held by the Audit Committee, all of them were with the
attendance of the external auditor of the Company. Among
other matters, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
and annual reports as well as results announcements before
submission to the Board, focusing on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements;
the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s financial
controls, internal controls and risk management systems and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
the Company’s external auditor. The consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related notes thereto for
the year ended 31 December 2019 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.
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The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 June 2012
and has adopted written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2019. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include the evaluation of the performance,
approving the terms of the service contracts of the Directors
and the making of recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, members of
the Remuneration Committee were Mr. Guo Xuewen,
Mr. Xia Zuoquan and Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, all being
independent non-executive Directors, with Mr. Guo Xuewen
being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. In 2019,
the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, and reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, a significant portion of which will be linked to
corporate and individual performance, among other matters.

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 June 2012
and has adopted written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the composition of the Board, including its structure, size
and diversity at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience that fits the business model and
specific needs of the Group. It is also responsible for identifying,
considering and recommending to the Board eligible persons
with suitable background in becoming members of the Board,
monitoring the succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) when identifying
suitably qualified candidates in becoming members of the Board,
summary of which are set out as follows:

(a) the Board recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance quality of its
performance;

(b) with a view of achieving a sustainable and balanced
development that fits the business model and specific
needs of the Company, the Company considers
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise),
skills, knowledge and length of services; and
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(c) the ultimate appointment decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board without focusing on only single
diversity aspect.

Given that the Group would like to further develop the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business, the Company would
put more weight on the relevant experience and professional
experience in selecting candidates for executive Directors.

The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy annually.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, as our Board
considered its current size being optimal, therefore the Board
has not yet set any objectives for further implementing the
Board Diversity Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, members of the
Nomination Committee were Mr. Dang Yanbao, Mr. Xia
Zuoquan, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony and Mr. Guo Xuewen,
a majority being independent non-executive Directors, with
the Chairman of the Board as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

In 2019, the Nomination Committee held one meeting,
taken into consideration the Board Diversity Policy, reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, made
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
and assessed the independence of each of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code of the
Listing Rules.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the Listing
Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this corporate governance
report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its Shareholders, in particular, through annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with the
Shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Friday, 29 May 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of the Shareholders, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at the Shareholders’ meeting. Save as provided under the
Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of
the Company (other than purely administrative and procedural
matters) are taken by poll and poll results are posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
after the Shareholders’ meetings.

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, EGM of the Company shall be convened on the
requisition of any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, and such Shareholders shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s), as a result of the
failure of the Board, shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through its general meetings, including
annual general meetings, the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Shareholders may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent that such information is publicly available. Any such
questions shall be first directed to the company secretary of the
Company at the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Suites 3401, 34/F, Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong or through email to ir@baofengintl.com.
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The number of Shareholders necessary for putting forward a
proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting of the Company shall be
any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings at the date of the request.
Any such proposals shall be first directed to the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Suites 3401, 34/F, Two Pacific
Place, 88 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong or through email
to ir@baofengintl.com. The request will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the proposal in
the agenda for the general meeting.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in which the
declaration of future dividends will depend on, among others,
the Group's earnings, the business environment in which the
Group conducts its business, the business strategies of the
Group, the capital needs of the Group in the future and the
tax implication of the dividend to our Group. The potential
investors should note that dividend payments should not be
regarded as an indication of future dividend policy. After
considering the factors set out above, the Board has resolved
not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Jiao Yingchen
was the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Jiao is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. As the company secretary, Ms.
Jiao supports the Board by ensuring Board procedures and
all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. She is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and facilitates induction and professional development of
the Directors. The selection, appointment or dismissal of the
company secretary of the Company is subject to the Board’s
approval in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Whilst the company secretary of the Company
reports to the chief executive on the Group’s company
secretarial and corporate governance matters, all Directors
have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Jiao Yingchen confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE
Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of interim and annual reports,
other inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The auditor of the Company acknowledges their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged its auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, to prepare the statutory audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2019. The remuneration paid/payable to the auditor
of the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fir 2 it R 7%
Statutory audit services ETE B R
Non-statutory audit services IEEEETIR

The non-statutory audit services are mainly related to review
of interim consolidated financial statements and review
in connection with the acquisition of the 350-megawatt
photovoltaic power generation equipment in 2019.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is the key to enhancing investor relations.
It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to the Shareholders and the
public. The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its interim and annual reports. The corporate website of the
Company (www.baofengintl.com) has provided an effective
communication platform to its Shareholders and the public.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
and the Audit Committee conducted selective reviews of
the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group over financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board and the Audit Committee
were not aware of any areas of concern that would have a
material impact on the Group’s financial position or results
of operations and considered the risk management and
internal control systems to be generally effective and adequate
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
engaged an external accounting firm in the PRC to carry out
internal audit to a subsidiary of the Company involving in
the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business and it involves
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems. Nonetheless,
the Company did not have an internal audit function for the
entire Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. Taking
into account the size and complexity of the operations of the
Group, the Company considers that the existing organisation
structure and close supervision by the management can
maintain sufficient risk management and internal control of
the Group. However, the Board will review the need to set up
an internal audit function from time to time and may set up an
internal audit team if the need arises.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The fundamental strategy of risk management is to know the
risks associated with the Group and to perceive the change
of those risks from time to time. The major risks of the Group
include but are not limited to:

In relation to the Lighting Products Business, market
competition was keen in the principal market of the lighting
products of the Group and the Group might not be able
to maintain its popularity among its customers. For the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business, the industry is heavily
regulated by the PRC government and the timing of settling
tariff adjustment would have an impact on the operations of
the Group.

In view of the above challenges, the Board has continuously
had an efficient communications system to mitigate the risks,
and would adjust our strategy accordingly. Solutions in dealing
with risks in relation to the businesses of the Group include
improving the quality of our products, increasing the efficiency
of our business, and establishing effective communication
channels with relevant regulatory authorities.

The risks associated with the Group’s financial instruments
include foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk.

A significant part of revenue of the Group borrowing under
the Finance Lease Agreement were denominated in Renminbi
while the Group has transactions invoiced in US dollars and
bank balances and cash denominated in HK dollars, and
accordingly the Group was exposed to foreign exchange risk. It
will continue to closely monitor the risks and take measures to
lower the risks if necessary.
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In relation to the Lighting Products Business, the Company
normally gives its customers a credit period of 30-90 days.
Based on past experience, the trade receivables not provided
for can normally be recovered and the Group has strict
control over its trade receivables. For the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business, the Ningxia branch of the State Grid
Corporation of China was the Group’s only customer for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The trade receivables included
charges for electricity supply and tariff adjustment. The charges
for electricity supply would usually be received in the following
month, while the collection of tariff adjustment receivables is
expected in the normal operation cycle, which may be more
than one year. The Group’s operation solar power plant has
qualified for registration in the list of subsidized projects under
the 2020 Administrative Measures The Directors are confident
that the tariff adjustment receivables are fully recoverable
upon the allocation of funds from the PRC government. The
Company will continue to closely monitor the changes of
relevant regulations, maintain an effective communication
channel with relevant regulatory authorities and take
appropriate measures to mitigate any risks which may arise in
this regard.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group has in place an integrated framework of internal
controls which is consistent with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission’s framework.
Under the framework, the management is primarily responsible
for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls while the Board and the Audit Committee oversee the
actions of the management and monitor the effectiveness of
the controls that have been put in place. The framework and
activities taken are illustrated below:

Control Environment

o Management takes a hands-on approach and is fully
committed to set the control environment ensuring that
individuals are control conscious

o The Group has set up the relevant management team
to ensure regulations are complied with and internal
controls are carried out properly

o Management closely monitors the organisation
structure and the responsibilities of individuals granting
appropriate authorities for them to handle assigned
tasks

o Performance evaluation procedures are available to
ensure individuals are competent
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Risk Assessment

Management has established a clear strategic direction
and business objectives

Formal risk assessment has been conducted to identify
and analyse key risks associated with achieving the
Group's objectives which form the basis for determining
key control activities

Control Activities

Policies/procedures on key control activities are
established to ensure management directives are carried
out

Range of activities including approvals, authorisation,
verifications, recommendations, performance reviews,
asset security and segregation of duties are identified
and implemented

Information and Communication

Pertinent information is identified, captured, processed
and reported

Access to internal and external general information is
available

Management maintains an open-door policy to allow
communication, taking place both horizontally and
vertically though the organisation

In respect of the internal control system, procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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The following chart illustrates the internal control system and
risk management procedures adopted by the Group during the

"A\Aiﬁi

year ended 31 December 2019:
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RISK MANAGEMENT TEAM
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e Establish strategic objectives

e Overall risk management

e Monitor the nature of the Group’s major risks

e Monitor the risk management framework

e Review key risks and mitigation strategies,
and ensure the effectiveness of risk
management

e Ensure that the Group has established and
maintained a reasonable and effective risk
management framework

e Oversee the implementation of risk
management

e Assess the risks assumed by the Board to
approve the Group’s implementation of the
strategic objectives
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The risk management team is composed of
the relevant functional departments of the
Company

Responsible for the specific work of all
stages of the overall risk management of the
Company

Develop guidelines for risk management
Prepare annual risk assessment

Conduct self-examination and inspection of
the Company’s risk management on a regular
basis
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HEAD OF
PHOTOVOLTAIC
POWER PLANT
KRB R

HEAD OF GENERAL
MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT
RAEERIR

HEAD OF FINANCE
DEPARTMENT
BB &

HEAD OF ENGINEERING
MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT
IREEPIHR

Fully responsible for the safety of personnel and equipment at the photovoltaic power plant,
and ensure safe and economic operations

Participate in all kinds of inspection and make rectification recommendations

Responsible for equipment inspection and maintenance, and give notice for examining and
processing equipment defects in a timely manner

Responsible for all acceptances after maintenance and make acceptance and rectification
recommendations

Review the receipt of items, purchase and reimbursement accounts at the power plant, and
oversee the economic accounts of the inspection departments

Provide feedback to the risk management team of major deficiencies and substantive
vulnerabilities in a timely manner
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Responsible for collection of legal risk, security risk, personnel change risk, procurement cost
risk, information system risk and conduct initial risk identification and evaluation
Responsible for the Company’s confidential management

Prepare the Company’s annual administrative expenses budget and control the
administrative expenditures

Make response proposals and report to the risk management team of the Company
Responsible for specific risk management of the department
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Organise and implement risk management assessments of the Company

Organise and oversee the implementation of control system, identify, collect and analyse
control deficiencies, make and implement recommendations for improvement

Provide feedback to the risk team of major deficiencies and substantive vulnerabilities in a
timely manner in order to monitor the operation of the internal control system

Review the Company’s annual risk assessment report, and submit to the Board for approval
Organise internal control testing, implement internal control improvement
recommendations, investigate and deal with incidents that result in significant loss or
adverse effect because of control failure
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Identify, evaluate and assess risks to achieve strategic objectives

Implement risk management procedures and internal control measures in operating and
functional areas

Conduct risk management activities during daily operations and report

Ensure that the effectiveness of the risk management framework within the scope of its own
responsibilities is reviewed at least annually and seek confirmation from the Audit Committee
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The system is established for the Group’s risk management,
to develop a standardised and effective risk control system,
improve risk management and prevention, ensure the healthy
and sound operation of the Company and enhance the
management of risks with reference to the actual situation of
the Company.

Comprehensive risk management is a process and method
which provides reasonable assurance for achieving the overall
objective of risk management, where the Company implements
basic procedures of risk management in every procedure of
corporate management and during the course of operation
to nurture a sound risk management culture and develop
a sound comprehensive risk management system. The goal
of comprehensive risk management is to ensure that the
Company’s management activities are carried out healthily,
to avoid and reduce the possible losses caused by risks and to
guarantee the achievement of the strategic objectives, which
mainly include:

o to control risks in line with overall objectives and within
acceptable levels;

° to achieve timely, reliable and complete communication
of the Company’s internal and external information;

o to ensure the Company’s business activities comply with
the provisions of national laws and regulations;

o to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the
Company’s operations and management; and

o to ensure the Company’s establishment of management
solutions for significant risks to enable it not to suffer
great losses due to catastrophic risk or human error.

Collect initial risk management information

Each of the functional departments extensively and
continuously collects internal and external initial information
related to the Company’s risks and risk management, including
historical data and future forecasts. The initial information
collected shall be screened, refined, compared, classified and
assembled to form the Company’s initial risk management
information for risk assessment.
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Risk assessment

Risk assessment includes three steps: risk identification, risk
analysis and risk evaluation. Risk assessment may be carried
out by the risk management team in conjunction with other
functional departments and, if necessary, with a qualified,
reputable and professional risk management intermediary.
Risk identification refers to identifying risks in the Company’s
important business activities and its major business processes.
Risk analysis is a clear definition of the identified risks and
their characteristics, relating to analysing and describing
the likelihood and conditions of the risks that occur. Risk
evaluation is to assess the impact of the risks on the Company’s
achievement of objectives and the value of those risks.

Develop and implement risk management strategies

The risk management team formulates the Company’s
significant risk management strategies based on risk graphs
and the Company’s development strategy by determining the
risk appetite, risk tolerance and risk management effectiveness
criteria according to the different business characteristics,
selecting such appropriate risk management tools such as
risk exposure, risk aversion, risk transfer, risk conversion, risk
hedging, risk compensation and risk control, clarifying the
minimum and maximum risk that the Company is exposed
to, and accordingly identifying the Company’s risk warning
line and the corresponding risk mitigation measures. The
effectiveness and reasonableness of the established significant
risk management strategies are reviewed annually to formulate
adjustment recommendations for the Company’s significant
risk management strategies of the year.

Propose and implement risk management solutions

The Group has also established an internal control
accountability system, which expressly stipulates the
responsibilities of the relevant functional departments and
project companies, posts and personnel based on the principle
of unification of rights, obligations and responsibilities.

Control and improvement of risk management supervision

All departments shall regularly carry out self-examination and
inspection on the risk management of the Company, and
when defects are identified, rectify them in a timely manner.
Inspection and examination reports shall be submitted to the
Company’s risk management team in a timely manner for its
review and subsequently submitted to the Audit Committee.
The Company’s risk management functional departments
and audit departments should conduct an annual inspection
and examination of the implementation and effectiveness
of the risk management work of all functional departments
and project companies, and issue special reports on risk
management assessment and recommendations.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations and implements various procedures to ensure
inside information remains confidential until the disclosure
of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made.

LGt
PR H:F{E E*EJ—LIZ ;J?;& HEA/\TE }—L PR H;E {

%m B w1 A B L i 3 J\%ﬂ HEWEE‘&@%-&BFEJE
i JZ\E%TE{ BEE - FEYy  EREESEXEE
NBROFNTEBHEER - H RABEBEELRAE

Iﬁég%«%/ﬁ@&ﬁégﬁﬂ%wﬁiﬁp R ﬁﬁ
M2 5 3 0 A R B e S e ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁm% DT
M RBREETREENSE  REREBEENEKESE - R
BAERIERAKREAFEREBEEZENFERE - Bk
MEBS -

B je 2R EE‘E%W

e i 3R /N AEAR B L B CBRARRNERE
B - *ETJ%TH%%%%% ﬁﬁ’émﬂ Tﬁﬂ [\ Bz 7¥<E
FQ‘ Eiafiﬁxﬁllﬂi‘? I 5 RO J—LE
& EREE - BEREGR - RS - ﬂ @1E
ﬁ%%ﬂ—rm E’Jﬂ ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ%‘%ﬁf 'BHEEZIK
B By SR AKPR E AN T BE B B Y &% IZEF 3 45

E$ LY E’J?E%%?&*Ef?”ﬁxﬁﬁﬂ TR - SR
ARREARBERRE - SFEMTECHENE
AR ﬁﬁi@ﬁﬁﬂi?ﬂ’]*ﬁiﬁl’li%ﬂé\@'\& C TERARBIFE
BEREARERREAEEE -

te i M E h b B IR AR TS 5
AEBECEVANRETHE - RBEN - FHMEE
ER—RA - ARERESABBESFAMER A
A HMURABERAENEE-

ﬂﬁgﬁ?ﬂ“ﬂﬁ&L

EHPEEHE ARG EREREIEETEE MR
%'&%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁ maE - *ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%
ARRERERNE - KRRER DEAEREIREZ
ZE® - pnlARERBENFIMNEAIFIEE—R
HEBAAPIAMIER AR RREEIEERBEANE
@ﬁ§ﬁ$£ﬁ$ﬁ W ERBRERETHNERE
TH R ==

BRRAARDEDI OER R E AR H BRI R B
L i IR P AREIRNEH B EﬁéL;ﬁﬁt/ﬁT&ﬂg
RE - WHEERBRNE B RMARRER

—E-NEER



This Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”)
is prepared by the Group under the requirements in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 27 (the “ESG Guide") of the Listing Rules.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company’s
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") strategy and
reporting. Our management is responsible for evaluating,
determining, monitoring and managing ESG-related risks
and the effectiveness of the ESG management system. The
scope of policies, compliance, disclosure of data and relevant
measures in this report covers the Group’s photovoltaic power
plant and office in Hong Kong. In determining the coverage
of this report, the Company assessed the contribution of the
operating subsidiaries to the profit attributable to owners
of the Company. The ESG information of those operating
subsidiaries which contribute less than 5% of the profit
attributable to owners of the Company would not be included
in this report.

The long term vision of the Group in managing ESG issues
is to promote the development of the green energy and to
minimise all emissions and wastes. In medium-term and short-
term, we are dedicated to the building of a stable and reliable
power generation system to safeguard a safer, cleaner, more
economical and more sustainable electric power supply.

The management personnel leading our various business
activities, in conjunction with our respective employees and
other key stakeholders have all involved in the materiality
assessment, the identification of the following ESG aspects and
their incorporation into this report.

In assessing materiality, the Board has taken into account (i) the
economic, environmental, and social impacts of such ESG risks;
(ii) how such ESG risks would influence the decisions of the
stakeholders of the Group; and (iii) how such ESG risks would
affect the long term vision and medium-term and short-term
ESG strategy of the Group.

To implement the ESG strategy stated above, the company
secretary would coordinate the designated personnel in
different business units to collect data in relation to the key
performance indicators of each of the ESG aspects. The Board
would then evaluate the effectiveness of the ESG management
annually.
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Aspects

A.

Al

A2.

A3.

B2.

B3.

B4.

B5.

B6.

B7.
BS.

Environmental
Emissions

Use of Resources
The Environment and

Natural Resources

Social

. Employment

Health and Safety
Development and Training

Labour Standards

Major Environmental, Social and
Governance Matters

Emissions and Waste

Carbon Emissions

Use of Energy and Water
Consumption

The Environmental Management
System

Continuing Compliance Control

Employment Practices and Equal
Opportunity

Healthy and Safe Working
Environment

¢ Development and Training for
Employees

Preventing Child Labour and Forced
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Product Responsibility

Anti-corruption
Community Investment

Labour

Supply Chain Management ¢ Sustainable Supply Chain

Management

Stable Power Supply
Customer Service
Anti-corruption
Engagement in Supporting
Community

Details of each ESG aspect are as follows.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group pays great attention to environmental
protection by committing to promoting the
development of green energy in society, so as
to minimise all emissions and wastes. We are
confident that our philosophy is conducive to
maintaining the sustainability of the community,
thus facilitating its stable and peaceful
development. For this purpose, we provide
the society with green and clean energy in the
power generation method of low pollution and
low emission by developing and promoting
photovoltaic electricity to the community, in
order to reduce the emission of greenhouse
gases, including carbon dioxide. In the process
of generating photovoltaic electricity, solar
power is converted into electricity by using
semiconducting materials that exhibit the
photovoltaic effect while generating almost zero
carbon dioxide or other pollutants and without
requiring any cooling water. Such environmental
policies were put in practice and covering the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong and the
PRC since January 2017 but no written policy
was adopted as at the date of this report. Such
practice is being reviewed from time to time by
our management as when necessary.
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Emissions and Waste

Our photovoltaic plant commenced operation
successfully in the third quarter of 2016.
Photovoltaic power generation is the process
of converting solar radiation into electricity by
exhibition of the photovoltaic effect with no
exhaust gas, sewage water or other hazardous
pollutants being produced. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not generate
any hazardous waste and only generated a
small amount of non-hazardous waste, mainly
attributed to the consumption of approximately
311.95 kg in aggregate of paper by the offices
of its power plants and its Hong Kong office.
In response to environmental protection, we
advocate the philosophy of a paperless office
by utilising an e-platform and liaising through
e-communication with our employees and clients
on a best effort basis in order to reduce paper
consumption. The amount of non-hazardous
waste increased by 43.2kg in the Reporting
Period, mainly caused by the increasing of
hard copy print outs due to enhancement of
completion inspection procedures of the projects
of the Group and enhancement of internal
control of financial systems.

Carbon Emissions

Our carbon emission mainly arises from power
consumption. During the Reporting Period, the
consumption of purchased power was associated
with our business operations, which emitted
26,171 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(COze). We have implemented various energy
conservation measures to reduce carbon
emission. For the details regarding the data of
power consumption and our energy conservation
measures, please refer to the paragraph headed
"A2. Use of Resources” below.

Remark:  The carbon emission was calculated with
reference to Greenhouse Gas Protocol
published by World Business Council
for Sustainable Development (WBCSD)
and World Resources Institute (WRI), the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPls
published by HKEX and Baseline Emission
Factors for Regional Power Grids in China
(7R B [ 12 B8 A B E AR BEAREE F) published
by the Department of Climate Change of
PRC’s National Development and Reform
Commission.
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During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations relating to environmental
protection that may have significant impact on
the Group includes the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC ((FEARKMBERERE
7%)), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution ({##E A R4 HN
B K520 587%)), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution ({2
ARHETBEAFSAEYAE)) and the Law of
the PRC on Prevention and Treatment of Solid
Waste Pollution ({FZ A R H 703 [E 88 2 55 2
IR%EBHIAE) ). During the Reporting Period, we
have not detected any material breach of such
relevant laws and regulations.

We are committed to technological innovation
and have devoted a lot of capital and
professional talents to drive the technological
development of photovoltaic electricity, seeking
to enhance the power generation efficiency
of our photovoltaic electricity system on a
continuous basis, including the enhancement of
conversion efficiency from light to electricity, the
increase of the light panel’s effective area for
receiving sunlight and the maximum power point
tracking technology. The Group implemented a
horizontal single axis tracking system to adopt a
tilted angle for photovoltaic power generation,
which maximises the angle for attracting sunlight
according to the degree of solar irradiance,
thereby effectively enhancing the conversion
efficiency and increasing the volume of power
generation. Such environmental policies were
put in practice and covering the subsidiaries of
the Group in Hong Kong and the since January
2017 but no written policy was adopted as at
the date of this report. Such practice is being
reviewed from time to time by our management
as when necessary.
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Use of Energy and Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, the energy
consumption disclosed was mainly attributed
to the utility electricity with a total of
35,354,800 kWh, representing 3.7328 kWh
energy consumed per square meter. Our water
consumption was not material as most of it
was used for basic office cleaning. During the
Reporting Period, the water consumption of
our power plants was 2,800 cubic meters,
representing 0.0003 cubic meter water
consumed per square meter.

Since our water supply facility is located in our
leased office in Hong Kong, its management fee
is inclusive of our water consumption volume and
water utility bills. Municipal water is our main
consumption source, and there is no difficulty in
obtaining a water source.

During the Reporting Period, the energy
consumption by the Group was slightly reduced
and the water consumption was similar as the
previous reporting period.

Although our electricity and water consumption
is relatively low, the Group still strives to reduce
such consumption. We advocate the philosophy
of a green office and have formulated related
rules and regulations. By standardising water
and electricity consumption practices, as well as
incorporating energy conservation and emission
reduction into daily management, we reinforce
our electricity distribution on our lighting and
air conditioning system, thereby reducing
unnecessary resource wastes. In order to remove
dust and dirt on the surface of our solar modules,
and in turn to improve power generation, we
wipe and clean the solar modules on a regular
basis, thereby maximising the conversion
efficiency of solar irradiation. Employees are the
most important element of our green office,
therefore, we attach great importance on
enhancing the awareness among our employees
in saving resources, and emphasise that the
management shall take the lead and become a
model in integrating environmental protection
into the workplace, aiming to develop a green
workplace from the top down.

Given our business nature, no packing materials
are used during our daily operations.
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The Environmental Management System

In accordance with the requirements of the
ISO 14001 standard for an environmental
management system, we have established
an environmental management system since
January 2016 covering all our offices and
power plants which is reviewed from to time
by our management as and when necessary.
The system covers the full-cycle operation
including environmental policies establishment,
environmental risks and factors identification,
control procedures, environmental impact
assessment as well as construction and
operation of project approved. We identify the
major environmental factors to assess their
impacts, implement control measures and plan
accordingly.

Continuing Compliance Control

We also develop compliance management
procedure for all environmental risks, and
prescribe and continuously monitor the
standards for environmental factors. Relevant
personnel will pay regular attention to the
amendment of regulations and update the
Group's compliance plan and monitoring
standards in a timely manner.

In addition, we provide service to FEEZ
REHUSABR A A for its photovoltaic agriculture
business, utilising the feature of zero emission
of solar photovoltaic power generation to plant
goji berries and alfalfas, which generates better
economic and social benefits.

Please refer to paragraphs headed “A1. Emissions”
and "A2. Use of Resources” in this report on
the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them during the
Reporting Period.
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(B)

SOCIAL

Employment Practices and Equal Opportunity
We are committed to the building of a
standardised, orderly, fair and effective
operation system of human resources in a bid to
make full use of its talents and their capabilities,
and actively carry out rich and colourful cultural
activities to build a harmonious culture and
atmosphere and to enhance the sense of
belonging of our staff.

We promote an equal opportunity principle and
have zero tolerance and no allowance on all
discrimination. We recruit talents based on their
educational backgrounds, experiences, skills,
potential and performance in interviews, rather
than other factors such as gender, marital status
or degree of disability. Each employee joins the
Group with equal treatment. The same salary
structure applies to all men and women, and
they are promoted based on several factors,
including their speciality, working performance
and experience.

We also strive to make sure that the level of our
employees’ income and benefits is competitive
in the market. We strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations, such as the PRC Labour
Law, to offer pension insurance, medical
insurance, work injury insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance, provident
fund and employer’s liability insurance for
employees in the PRC. Pregnant employees
are entitled to maternity leave while male
employees are entitled to paternity leave. In
Hong Kong, we provide mandatory provident
fund benefits, labour insurance, annual leave,
paid sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave
and other statutory welfares to our employees
in accordance with the laws and regulations
concerning labour issues in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to human resources in
Hong Kong include the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57), Minimum Wages Ordinance (Cap.
608), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485), Sex Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 487), Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527) and Race
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602).
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During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to human resources
in the PRC include Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China (13 A R F1E 4

& [RE), the Provisional Measures for Maternity

Insurance of Employees of Corporations (i®
¥BTAEBRBHETINE), the Decisions on

the Establishment of a Unified Program for
Basic Old-Aged Pension Insurance of the State
Council (BN BRI —HRERITE
REEZRBRFIERRE), the Decisions on the
Establishment of the Medical Insurance Program
for Urban Workers of the State Council (B7
PrEAR B ER TEAEERBRGEORE),
the Unemployment Insurance Measures (k%
RER1E), the Interim Regulations Concerning
the Collection and Payment of Social Insurance
Premiums (tL &R BB E1TIEA]), the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China
(P E AR LB LS REDE) and the Regulations
on the Management of Housing Funds ((F 5 A&
TEIRIRD).

During the Reporting Period, we have incurred
approximately RMB54.4 million on total staff
costs including benefits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
detected any material breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to human resources.

Healthy and Safe Working Environment

We conscientiously implement national
laws and regulations as well as standards
and specifications in relation to work safety
and occupational health, actively promote
the implementation of the OHSAS18000
standards for an occupational health and safety
management system and continuously improve
our systems and processes to ensure the health
and occupational safety of our employees.
We adopted such standard since January
2016 and are reviewed from time to time by
our management as and when necessary. We
monitor occupational disease hazards every
year, reasonably evaluate the impacts that
works and environment have on employee’s
personal health, and reinforce the emergency
management and prevention measures for work
safety through a series of safety measures,
such as work safety committee meetings, safety
month activities, meetings before and after
shifts, work safety weekly meetings, safety
supervision, online safety meetings, regular and
irregular inspections, safety evaluation, hazard
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identification and implementation of 25 anti-
accident measures. Employees in charge of works
with high risks must wear safety protection
while working and attend trainings on safety
and working skills on a regular basis, in order
to minimise the possibility of accidents at the
source.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to provision of healthy
and safe workplace in Hong Kong include the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.
509) and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Cap. 282).

During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to provision of healthy
and safe workplace in the PRC include the Work
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FFEAREMBEZ 2 EEE), Regulation of
Insurance for Labour Injury (TSR 1&).

During the Reporting Period, we have not
incurred any expense due to work injury claims
by employees.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to health and safety in the workplace.

Development and Training for Employees

We actively assist our employees in their personal
development to enable them to discover their
value within the Group while contributing to our
growth and development. We maintain a well-
established training system, regularly set training
goals and provide employees with relevant
training to enhance their working knowledge
and skills. We have invited professional technical
staff from the design units and suppliers of our
equipment to provide designated training, while
at the same time arranged training on electronic,
mechanical and safety aspects to improve the
technical skills and overall environment of our
employees on a monthly basis. In addition,
employees are encouraged and assisted to
identify their personal ambitions and draw up a
career development plan with their immediate
SUpervisors.
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To this end, the Group continues to strengthen
its team of skilled personnel and has
implemented an appraisal system for technicians
to facilitate their growth. We also carry out in-
depth trainings for leaders, professionals, skilled
personnel and collective induction trainings for
newly-joined college graduates under the overall
requirements of “by classification, multilayer
and on demand”, while enhancing training
methods and adopting innovative training means
to improve training efficiency. Moreover, a skills
competition is also held on a regular basis to
show their talent and boost the cross-learning
atmosphere among our employees.

Such training policies were put in practice and
covering the subsidiaries of the Group in Hong
Kong and the PRC since January 2016 but no
written policy was adopted as at the date of
this report. Such practice is being reviewed from
time to time by our management as and when
necessary.

Preventing Child and Forced Labour

We strictly comply with national laws and
regulations, including the Labour Law and the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC and laws and
regulations concerning human resources set out
in the paragraph headed “B1. Employment”
in Hong Kong, and lawfully enter into labour
contract with our employees. Employment of
child and forced labour is completely eradicated.
All employees are encouraged to report to the
Group at any time for any non-compliance
incidents such as employment of child and forced
labour during the course of our recruitment
and operations. Such policies in relation to
preventing child or forced labour was adopted
when the Group commenced operation in Hong
Kong and the PRC and will be reviewed when
there is amendment to the relevant laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to preventing child or forced labour.
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Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Group is persistent in developing fair and
impartial working relationships with its suppliers.
The purchases of all major materials are subject
to an administrative regime that separates
purchase, delivery inspection and acceptance,
and supervision in a bid to eliminate corruption
at the source. Contracts and agreements
are performed in stringent compliance with
contractual requirements and all suppliers
are treated with respect in an equal manner.
Meanwhile, we also attach great importance
to the reflection of problems on suppliers
and will carry out a sustained review on their
performance in fulfilling the contracts. Any
related persons are encouraged to report any
abnormalities or provide any comments to our
purchasing management centre as soon as
practicable.

While fulfilling our own social responsibility,
we also incorporate concepts and requirements
of social responsibility in the management of
our suppliers. A stringent and standardised
system for the selection and management
of suppliers has been formulated, in a bid to
safeguard a healthy and orderly marketplace.
For the environment, our suppliers are required
to obtain, maintain and regularly update all
environmental permits and licenses and comply
with all operational and other disclosure
requirements in respect of the environment.
For equipment upgrades and production
process enhancements, our suppliers are also
required to take steps to economise on the use
of natural resources, promote waste recovery
and recycling as well as properly manage
and duly deal with environmental hazards. In
addition, all our suppliers are required to adopt
proper measures to minimise safety risks in
the workplace, including the formulation of an
emergency plan and the provision of sufficient
personal protection items. Labour practices and
performance are two important considerations
in the selection of suppliers. We have zero
tolerance for suppliers’ environmental and labour
malpractices, and will surely avoid or cease
cooperation with such suppliers once it comes to
our attention.
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Such supply chain policies were put in practice
and covering the subsidiaries of the Group in
Hong Kong and the PRC since January 2016 but
no written policy was adopted as at the date of
this report. Such practice is being reviewed from
time to time by our management as and when
necessary.

Stable Power Supply

We are dedicated to the building of a stable
and reliable power generation system to
safeguard a safer, cleaner, more economical
and more sustainable electric power supply.
Therefore, we regard safe production as one
of the prerequisites for a stable power supply
and sustainable development for us, along with
the establishment of a sound system through
driving the development of a safety, health, and
environmental (“SHE”) management system on
all fronts and revising and complying with the
SHE management regulations.

To ensure a stable power supply, we have
formulated various facility management
regulations and set out plans for overhauls and
technological upgrades in a bid to maintain
facility management and secure as table
operation of our power generating units, as well
as adopted specific investigation techniques
to enhance facility repair and maintenance,
eliminate any hazards in the power generating
units and enhance reliability in a bid to deal with
the challenges in the peak power consumption
periods during the summer and winter seasons.

We have fulfilled relevant technical standards
and operational requirements of a grid system
in relation to the frequency, peak and voltage
modulation, to guarantee the safety and
reliability of the power we supply and the
operation of our grid system in an economical
and reliable manner.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to power supply
include Measures for the Supervision and
Administration of Power Work Safety (E %%
EEEEERIVE).
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Customer Service

We are pleased to communicate with our
customers to understand their requirements
and comments on our products. Our customer
services team strives to provide customers with
professional product consultation and after-sale
services, with multiple communication channels
available for customers to offer their comments.
In case of any customer dissatisfaction with our
products or services, we have set up measures
to deal with their comments and timely conduct
rectification in regard thereof, so as to gain
customer satisfaction with our products.

We have developed principles of confidentiality
in respect of the personal information of
our customers to focus on the protection of
their privacy. In no case will we disclose any
customer’s personal information to a third party
without the customer’s consent. All information
will be protected in a physically safe method or
by security settings in our computer system to
avoid theft.

Such product safety policies and privacy policies
were put in practice and covering the subsidiaries
of the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC since
January 2016 but no written policy was adopted
as at the date of this report. Such practice
is being reviewed from time to time by our
management as and when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to data privacy in
Hong Kong include the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486).

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to the quality of our products and
services.
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Anti-corruption and Bribery

As a corporate citizen, the Group has not
only established internal codes of conduct for
its staff, but also developed various interior
mechanisms, with the aim to enhance the
awareness of preventing improper conduct. We
also offer processing methods in that regard
to secure the legality and compliance of our
operations. Our internal codes of conduct
mainly consist of “Commandment for Integrity
Culture GHEXXERK) ", “Code of Conduct of
the Manager and Staff (IR B T17AFAI)"
and “Security Management Standard (&%
EIZXE)” in which all our staff are required to
abide by. We also insist on maintaining a high
level of corporate governance. To secure high
transparency, the terms of reference of the board
committees have been uploaded to the Group’s
website for public information. Moreover, in
order to actively prevent and combat corruption,
we have established an anti-corruption team
which holds anti-corruption meetings on a
regular basis. Such anti-corruption policies were
adopted when the Group commenced operation
in Hong Kong and the PRC and will be reviewed
when there is amendment to the relevant laws
and regulations. We have also conducted a
corruption risk assessment once a year and
delivered the Group's anti-corruption policies
and procedures through thematic training and
the publication of press releases. We have
made clear of the Group’s serious stance on
corrupt conducts, improved the staff’s vigilance,
alertness and processing capability towards such
conducts and regulated individual behaviour.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to anti-corruption
in Hong Kong include the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) and the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to anti-corruption in the
PRC include the Criminal Law of the People’s

Republic of China (% A RFEFEIE).

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption.
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Engagement in Supporting Community
Community development is closely related to our
operations. We would never achieve sustainable
development without our communities. Through
recruiting local manpower and employee
volunteer services, we have grown together
with the communities where our power plants
and offices locate. We cooperate with local
governments to actively join in poverty alleviation
through photovoltaic poverty alleviation. Our
solar power plants are mainly located in relatively
undeveloped areas in Northwestern China. By
constructing solar power plants in such areas,
local residents would be provided with clean
electricity. We prefer to recruit local employees
under the same requirements, thereby providing
a large number of job opportunities for the
local region. In addition, we encourage our staff
to participate in philanthropy and volunteer
activities to bring warmth to the disadvantaged
groups in the society. Beyond that, we are also
pleased to make donations to the communities
and charitable institutions in need to provide
assistance to people in need in the society.

Such community investment policies were put
in practice and covering the subsidiaries of the
Group in Hong Kong and the PRC since January
2016 but no written policy was adopted as at
the date of this report. Such practice is being
reviewed from time to time by our management
as and when necessary.
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The Directors are pleased in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as discussed in
this report, there were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year. Discussion and
analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) are set out on pages 8
to 23 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company
are set out in the section headed “Risk Management” in the
Corporate Governance Report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 80 of this annual report.
The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM") is to
be held on 29 May 2020. For the purpose of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
details of the closure of register of member of the Company
and the latest time to lodge transfer documents with the
Company’s share registrar is set forth as follows:

Book close dates for the 2019
AGM (both days inclusive)

Tuesday, 26 May 2020 to
Friday, 29 May 2020

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents with the
Company’s share registrar

Monday, 25 May 2020,
4:00 p.m.

Name and address of the
Company’s share registrar

Union Registrars Limited
Suites 3301-4, 33/F.,

Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Details of segment reporting are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributed to the Group’s largest and the five largest
customers were approximately 60.0% and 92.4% (2018:
59.8% and 91.1%) of the total value of the Group's revenue,
respectively. The Group’s purchases from the largest and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 32.9% and
80.4% (2018: 44.4% and 78.1%) of the total value of the
Group'’s purchases, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the major
customers or suppliers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition
of continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and are fully exempted from annual review,
independent Shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their shareholding in the
Company.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 82
of this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Cayman Islands’
legislation, amounted to approximately RMB488,491,000
(2018: RMB421,158,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Shares during the year ended 31
December 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on page 164 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACT

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement at each
annual general meeting by rotation or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from the office and be eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for three years. The two non-
executive Directors have signed an appointment letter with
the Company for two years and 2.5 years, respectively. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for two years. All the
Directors and the Company are required to give three months’
notice in writing to the other party for termination of the
service agreement/appointment letter. All the Directors are
appointed for a specific term and subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Liu Yuanguan
and Mr. Gao Jianjun, both being the executive Directors,
entered into supplemental agreements and renewed service
agreements to their respective service agreements to waive
their remuneration from 1 January 2019 to 28 January 2022.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each of Mr. Xia Zuoquan, Dr. Tyen Kan
Hee, Anthony and Mr. Guo Xuewen pursuant to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Please refer to pages 24 to 28 of this annual report for the list
of Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2019
and as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2019.

COMPETING INTEREST

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
controlling Shareholders and their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict
of interest, which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019.

There was no contract of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries on one hand, and a Director or an entity
connected with a Director on the other hand, and there was no
contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially
interested directly or indirectly, as at 31 December 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions in
the ordinary Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or shares, underlying shares or debentures of any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company that: (a)
was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which the Directors
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(b) were in the register required to be kept pursuant to section
352 of the SFO; and (c) were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are set out as
follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company

Capacity and

nature of interest

Bt RERMEE

Name of Director

EEHS

Mr. Dang Yanbao (Note 2) Interest of controlled

EEERE(ME2) MREESEE S
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the

share capital of the Company.

2. Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, is the sole shareholder and a director of
Fung Teng Enterprises Limited (“Fung Teng"”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and an investment holding company and is therefore deemed
to be interested in 456,150,000 Shares held by Fung Teng
under the SFO.

corporation

EEGHES

EERFERITHRAERAD AR EMEBE
B RS - HERORESFHESRAR

R-TB-—hF+_A=1—8 EZRARATELT
BABRE BN - R HE S EAE(TE
BorE(ER RESLAGERMN(TRERBEERG )
EXVER M - MERORESTEE - (REE
R ERGIEXVERET7 K8 B A& AN A7) K b
R (BRREFES AR ROBBGEXES AL
WAREEZEEIAR) (D) EHRRIEE LB
BIRPIE3526BFEZERM - RORE LEHRA
P8+ PrEl LT AZERETESF I HHRETH
%Eﬁ%"ﬂﬂj)ZE%D’§$’D\ET&H§%§FEE’\J%§&>‘%%
LFIanT

RARBREG - HERORES ZBEERAR

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued

share capital
HARATE BT
RABE DL

Number of
shares
&8 E
(Note 1)
(Mt=E1)

456,150,000 (L) 68.71%

HAE
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EEgHEE

Interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the associated corporations of
the Company

RAEAFTEBZENRS - HEROREZNVERR
KB

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s

issued
Name of share capital
associated Capacity and Number of S HRBAE
Name of Director corporation nature of interest shares ERTRA
EEgE B EE AR SHRRERNE RHBEE WEZ L
Mr. Dang Yanbao (Note 1) Fung Teng Beneficial owner 1 100%
EEZBLE(WE) I EnlAA
Note: BHsE
1. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Dang Yanbao is the sole 1. “T-NF+ZA=+—8 " Q?;%EHU}%%

shareholder and a director of Fung Teng, which is the holding
company of the Company. As such, Mr. Dang Yanbao is
interested in the shares of Fung Teng by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debenture of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which the Directors
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
are set out as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares

Capacity and

nature of interest

Bt RERMEE

Name of Shareholder

BRER

Beneficial owner

Fung Teng (Note 2) Benefic
EnEEA

I 6 (PffRE2)

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the
share capital of the Company.

2. Fung Teng, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, is an investment holding company with
the entire issued share capital held by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the
Chairman and an executive Director, as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2019, no
other person/company, other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued

share capital
HARATE BT
RABE DL

Number of
shares
&8 E
(Note 1)
(PfFE)

456,150,000 (L) 68.71%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant
to a written resolution of the Company passed on 21 June
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations, will expire on 21 June 2022. The
Share Option Scheme was adjusted on 27 July 2015.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant options
to any of the following participants:

(a) any Director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(" Affiliate”); or

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or
any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any Director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, sales representative,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate; or

(0 a company beneficially owned by any Director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
sales representative, partner, adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options that may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being
7.23% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and that may be granted to any
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue, without prior approval from the Shareholders.

Any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Shares in issue or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

Any offer made to a participant for an option must be taken
up within five business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 (or such other nominal sum as the Board
may determine). Options may be exercised at any time during
a period as the Board may determine, which shall not be more
than ten years from the date of grant of the options.
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The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the Board, and will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of a Share for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

No share option has been granted since the Share Option
Scheme was adopted. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no outstanding share options issued under the
Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreement was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 29 to 47 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, there is
sufficient public float of 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm
or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company during the
year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately RMB17,600.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
all the existing Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As
a responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and that have
a significant impact on the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019. The discussion set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report forms part of the report of the
Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
the applicable rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and
Shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationships with each of
its key stakeholders.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2019

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed, the Group has
no material events after the year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
China Baofeng (International) Limited

Dang Yanbao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA BAOFENG (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 80 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEEE)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power generation

HRBEEEEHEL Wz g7

We identified the revenue recognition on tariff adjustment
for photovoltaic power generation as a key audit matter
due to the critical management judgement involved in
determining whether the Group’s operating solar power
plant has qualified for, and has met all the requirements
and conditions as required for the registration in the
Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (RI B4 &EIRE
&M & £ % 8) B £%) (the “Catalogue”). The Catalogue
was replaced by a list of solar power plants that are
eligible for the tariff adjustment subsidy (the “Renewable
Energy Power List”) in January 2020, which will be
announced by the state grid company on a yearly and
project-by-project basis upon approval by the relevant PRC
authorities. Please refer to note 4 for details.
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AREET BSEELETHAGRESHEEDLATER
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The accounting policies in relation to revenue recognition
on tariff adjustment is set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FHSEARBARERNGTRRENGE S M BwKRMT
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Revenue from tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
generation of RMB386,688,000 from the state grid
company in the PRC is recognised for the year ended
31 December 2019 in which the operating solar power
plant is still pending registration in the Renewable Energy
Project List. Based on the management assessment as set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s operating solar power plant has qualified for
registration in the Renewable Energy Project List, and has
met, all the relevant requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Renewable Energy Project List.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s revenue
recognition on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
generation included:

B BEEEUNAEREETEERABHWEER - M
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o Obtaining an understanding of the policies and

regulations set by the PRC government authorities
on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
generation;
BERPERAERELAREETEE
FOEM
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o Obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s PRC
legal advisor in relation to the assessment that the
Group’s operating solar power plant currently in
operation has met all the relevant requirements
and conditions for the registration in the
Renewable Energy Project List and the entitlement
of the tariff adjustment when the electricity was
delivered on grid;
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o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the PRC legal advisor; and

AEPEDARER 2ER I RFERIML Rk

o Discussing with management and the Group’s
PRC legal advisor to assess if there are any factors
and changes in the government policies which
would affect the registration in the Renewable
Energy Project List by the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B SN TR B E S

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating
the expected credit losses (“ECL") of the Group's trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.
BMREESRUCENREN G RBRETEE  BR
RBmERARTE EEEEHRUFIENBHEEEBR
((AHEEBR NP RETBAE R ERE GG -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’'s net trade
receivables amounting to RMB118,745,000 and out of
these trade receivables, RMB17,094,000 were past due.
RZZE-—NF+-A=+—0  EBE£ENEZEWKFIE
TREEARBE118,745,0000T © MFE 5 EWFHIEF A
R#17,094,0007CE #H »

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group calculates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables (including
non-credit impaired and credit impaired) by considering
the debtors’ historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue costs or effort. The loss allowance amount
of the trade receivables is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.
WMAGRE M MEAM T4 HE X BEXEEEBELTR
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As disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s lifetime ECL provision on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB741,000.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BN E SRR RER S - RAZFEEE

o Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables;
BREEEGTESIRUNEERERNEE2E
il

o Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019, including
their identification of credit impaired trade
receivables, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in individual debtor (with reference to
historical default rates and forward-looking
information); and
BEREEEETN_T-NF+_A=+—HE
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o Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmakEtEEEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses
Selling expenses

Administrative and other expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year
Item that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation from functional currency to
presentation currency

Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share — Basic
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China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR

12

2018

—E—N\F

RMB’000

ARETTT

(Restated)

(#£E7)

885,407 918,514
(409,052) (397,865)
476,355 520,649
30,683 21,981
(22,271) (21,830)
(64,284) (66,236)
(87,399) (4,712)
333,084 449,852
(36,213) (7,888)
296,871 441,964
- 76,727

1,753 (78,301)
1,753 (1,574)
298,624 440,390
44.72 cents 72.32 cents
44725 72.325




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BN &

At 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(& =7)
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KERE 13 2,274,877 283,777
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 17,482 =
Rental deposit HERS 1,167 =
Deposit for other borrowing HnfeRmife 26 20,400 =
Deferred tax asset FIEF A& E 16 397 1,158
Intangible asset mEEE 17 333 409
2,314,656 285,344
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 16,423 29,511
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M E R IE 19 348,555 153,003
Contract assets é%’]é? 20 1,467,556 1,020,104
Prepaid rental expenses for FRERETENHESR R
photovoltaic facilities 15 - 36,324
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER 21 - 1,349
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 21 183,767 72,595
2,016,301 1,312,886
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B o5 hEMENRIE 22 77,572 113,536
Lease liabilities HeEaE 23 5,441 =
Provision B 24 13,998 14,018
Amount due to ultimate holding company — FE{ & 4212 fR 2\ B 308 25 - 7,040
Tax payable F’EWWE 7,594 3,318
Other borrowing H A g 26 31,927 =
136,532 137,912
Net Current Assets REEEZEE 1,879,769 1,174,974
Total Assets less Current Liabilities EEHABERARBERS 4,194,425 1,460,318
Non-current Liabilities FRBERS
Lease liabilities HeEaE 23 13,381 =
Other borrowing HAbfE 26 1,633,581 =
Amount due to a photovoltaic JE AT e TR BR e L P P RKIE
facilities provider 27 908,071 -
Deferred tax liability R TEEE 16 146 204
2,555,179 204
Net assets EEFE 1,639,246 1,460,114
Capital and Reserves PR A B i
Share capital RN 28 5,515 5,515
Reserves Gﬁﬁ 1,633,731 1,454,599
Total Equity BREREST 1,639,246 1,460,114

BOEE163AMGEAMBHMRNR T _TF=_

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 163 were

%
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson  ++H ,gm%%gﬁ ERERETRE  YRIATATR
27 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: ERE
Dang Yanbao Dang Zidong
EEE EEAR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUT/VE DIRECTOR
HITEE HITEE

Annual Report 2019 —F— hEEH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

Statutory
surplus
reserve

HERS
1
RMB'000
ARETT
(Note b)
(M)

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
profits

Translation
reserve

Special
reserve

Bx
RMB'000

ARETR

B
RMB'000
ARBTR

155l e
RMB'000
ARETT
(Note a)
(Freka)

Bt
RMB'000
ARBTL

REEF
RMB'000
ARBTI

At 1 January 2018 (restated) ~ R=F—-N\F—-A—H

82

(mE7) 4,693 246,527 (1 59,119 5,493 490,703 806,534

Profit for the year FERR = = - - - 441964 441964
Exchange differences arising AL EMIEE A2 EHK

on translation from EEMELZR

functional currency to

presentation currency - - - - 16,727 - 76,727
Exchange difference arising BERNEBELZR

on translation of foreign

operations - - - - (78,301) - (78,301)
Total comprehensive (expense) R (3 ) U3

income for the year Pk - - - - (1,574) 441,964 440,390
Issue of ordinary shares BITLER 822 212,919 - - - - 213,741
Share issue expenses RINETER = (551) = = = = (551)
Transfer B = = = 50,659 - (50,659) -
At 31 December 2018 (restated) RZ—Z—N\E+=A

=+—H(&E7)) 5515 458,895 M 109,778 3,919 882,008 1,460,114

Profit for the year B3yt = = - - - 29871 296,871
Exchange difference arising BERNEHBERZR

on translation of foreign

operations - - - - 1,753 - 1,753
Total comprehensive income ~ FR2ARGLE

for the year = = = = 1,753 296,871 298,624
Dividends paid (note 11) BRRE(MEE) - > > - - (119492  (119,492)
Transfer i = = = 34,017 = (34,017) =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+=A=1+—H 5515 458,895 (1) 143,795 5672 1,025370 1,639,246
Notes: BzE -
a. Special reserve represents the reserve arising from group g, EREEBER S —ERETEREAEL VT H#

reorganisation in 2012. # o

b. In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for foreign = p. RigrpiE A RAEMBE([hE]DIINEERECEMEE

investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after taxation reported in their statutory financial
statements prepared under relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to enterprises established in the
PRC to the statutory surplus reserve.

China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR

BER - FEMBERRFEERRBERR T BRI
EMBBEE R ERERBEOEE VB R
RPMENBRBREN 2 10%BERET BB
& o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Remeasurement on discounted present
value of tariff adjustment receivables
Remeasurement on discounted present
value of amount due to a photovoltaic
facilities provider
Allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories
Amortisation of intangible asset
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs
Imputed interest income on tariff
adjustment receivables
Interest income
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in prepaid rental expenses
for photovoltaic facilities
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in contract assets
(Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables
(Decrease) increase in provision

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid in Hong Kong

Income tax and withholding tax paid
in other jurisdictions

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Refund of rental deposit
Interest received
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2018

—T-N\F

RMB’000

ARETIT

(GENEELe))

(&%)

333,084 449,852
29,569 26,244
(22,375) —
859 387

85 81
64,724 9,048
3,212 =
87,399 4,712
(34,715) (20,906)
(855) (1,055)

= (63)
460,987 468,300
36,324 90,000
12,592 (14,582)
73,885 3,672
(442,306) (463,674)
(17,602) 9,224
(332) 4,504
123,548 97,444
(1,197) (5,437)
(30,052) (3,871)
92,299 88,136
(26,774) (152,055)
1,349 105,200
604 -
855 1,055

- (1,349)

- 63
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-T-AFT_A=t—AILFE

AONRS]
—TN\F
RMB’'000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(&eE3l))
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEZHMARS TR
ACTIVITIES (23,966) (47,086)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE
Advance from a photovoltaic KA HRERIEHIEE O E K
facilities provider 300,000 -
Dividends paid ERRE (119,492) =
Interest paid BAFLE (108,767) (4,712)
Placement of deposit for other borrowing & E & A& (20,400) -
Repayment to ultimate holding company  {EEHAIEIR A A (7,040) -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAR (2,178) =
Advance from ultimate holding company R E&&MBIG AT Z 2K - 7,040
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER = (235,655)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRHD FTBRIE - 213,741
Share issue expenses RHBETER = (551)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BMETBHAE (A REFE
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 42,123 (20,137)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HEeRBRSZEYIEMTEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 110,456 20,913
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT NR—B—BBEERRESEEY
1 JANUARY 72,595 50,349
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERSFHHNELE
RATE CHANGES 716 1,333
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=-—A=+—HRER
31 DECEMBER RESEY
— represented by bank balances and cash —EBRTTES LIRS 183,767 72,595
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GENERAL

China Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company is Fung Teng Enterprises Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the chairman and
executive director of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Caymans Islands and
Suites 3401, 34/F., Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are photovoltaic power generation
and design and supply chain of lightings and home
furnishing products. Particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 37.

Prior to 1 January 2019, United States Dollars (“US$")
was regarded as the functional currency of the
Company and the consolidated financial statements
were presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HKS$"). During
the year, the directors of the Company consider that,
as a result of continued focus on the photovoltaic
power generation business in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the significant acquisition
of the 350-megawatt photovoltaic power generation
equipment (the "Equipment”) which was financed
by a source of funding in the PRC, the primary
economic environment, in which the Group operates,
has changed. It is more appropriate to use Renminbi
("RMB") as the functional currency. The presentation
currency also changed to RMB so as to in line with the
change in functional currency.

The change in functional and presentation currency
was accounted for in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard ("HKAS"”) 21 “The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The effects of the
change in presentation currency have been accounted
for retrospectively with comparative figures restated.
The comparative information in these consolidated
financial statements has been restated to reflect as
if RMB has always been the presentation currency of
the Group. The change in functional currency of the
Company was applied prospectively from the date of
change in accordance with HKAS 21.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the
first time in the current year. HKFRS 16
superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4 "Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 January 2019, the Group applies the definition
of a lease in accordance with the requirements
set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a
contract contains a lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date
of initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities
by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective
approach under HKFRS 16 at transition, the
Group applied the following practical expedients
to leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the
extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for leases with
lease term ends within 12 months of the
date of initial application; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 4.3% to 4.9%.

2.

F& H
e

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFIIEAMEREEN(HEBH
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREER ) REBIFTRE)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are AEERHERNFITIERBVEREEAR

mandatorily effective for the current year HETR(E)

(Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 21 BERUBREE[E 16 HEN(E)
As a lessee (Continued) EARTNA (&

At 1 January
2019
RZZE-N%F

—A—H
RMB’000
ARET T

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at R-Z—\F+=-A=+—H

31 December 2018 (restated) P e o (&R E R IE (&Y 12,018
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term B ERHRE —RHEE
leases (5,293)
6,725
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant HR - NF—A—HEAR
incremental borrowing rate relating to EBUEHMELERE 165 B ER
operating leases recognised upon application R&FHEHH 2 LA EER
of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 FIZEFBIRMAEARE 5,853
Analysed as SoRi=
Current mED 873
Non-current JERED 4,980
5,853

Right-of-use
assets

EREAE
RMB’000
ARETT

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets, RZZE-NF—A—HEREBNE
related to operating leases recognised upon WMEERFIRERABCEHE
application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019  ERZFEFREZERBESIENAT

comprises the following: B

Land and buildings T MEF 5,853

China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January
2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

AT EEMBREER([FEY
BHREED D REBIT R @)

FEERBERNFIEEMBRELEAR
HAEFT & (&)

21 FBEERPBRESEUNE16F [HEI(H)
TERZABA (B
AR —F—NF—A—BHEAWHER
MRER L EBRIELUATHE - KR
BYHFEABLEBEEA

Carrying Carrying

amounts amounts

previously under

reported at HKFRS 16 at

31 December 1 January

2018 Adjustments 2019

RZZE—-NF

S Al —A—HRE

RZZE—N\F BABM WS

+=A=+—H AERIZE165% 2

2Rz EmE ks BREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AR¥EFTTT ARETTT
Non-current Assets kREBEE

Right-of-use assets EREEE - 5,853 5,853

Current Liabilities REBEE

Lease liabilities HEAE = 873 873
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE

Lease liabilities HEBE - 4,980 4,980

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for
the year ended 31 December 2019, movements
in working capital have been computed based
on opening consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed
above.

Mz : BE—FT-AF+-A=+—8
LFEERBERETEZMELED
MRREREMS  EEESED
ERBEEXABER_T—hF—
HA— B0 IR e MR R H
/-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to Definition of Material*
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 9, HKAS 39 Reform?*
and HKFRS 7

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.

e Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2020.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs and the revised
Conceptual Framework mentioned below, the directors
of Company anticipate that the application of above
new and amendments to HKFRSs has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgments. In
particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to
omitting or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing
users from “could influence” to “could
reasonably be expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users”
rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding
what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across
all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence;
o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on

rights and a new liability definition that is likely
to be broader than the definition it replaces,
but does not change the distinction between a
liability and an equity instrument;

. discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance
on how to select a measurement basis for a
particular asset or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

° discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group
will rely on the New Framework on its effective date
in determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019)
or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A point in time revenue recognition

Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15,
revenue from sales of lighting product is generally
recognised when customer acceptance has been
obtained, which is the point of time when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the product and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
product. Revenue from sales of electricity and tariff
adjustment are recognised based on the electricity
transmitted dates.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

For contract assets where the Group has transmitted
the electricity before payments from the state grid
company in which the Group adjusts for the amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the state grid company at contract inception. The
Group recognises interest income during the period
between the payment from state grid company and the
transmission of electricity.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Solar power plant in the course of construction for
generation of electricity income is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “right-
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid
lease payments” (before application of HKFRS 16) in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated to the assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings and
photovoltaic facilities that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight- line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of the each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transaction are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

The change in functional currency of the Company was
applied prospectively from the date of change. All items
were translated into RMB at the exchange rate on that
date. The cumulative currency translation differences
which had arisen from the translation of foreign
operations up to the date of the change in functional
currency were not reclassified from equity to profit or
loss until the disposal of the relevant operations.

The change in presentation currency of the Company

was applied retrospectively, as if the new presentation
currency had always been applied.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
plans, state-managed retirement benefits scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition
and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation (i.e. defective claim) at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type
warranty obligations under the relevant contracts with
customers for sales of lighting products are recognised
at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the Group's obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

J the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

All the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at amortised cost.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
including trade and other receivables, rental deposit,
deposit for other borrowing, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and other item (contract assets). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables and contract
assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLFE

TESEE#)

MEEE(E)
M EEREE)

(iv)

HEH R R
EREMBTYFIBABREYBE
B - BB EERUR @ IR A 7] AE R ({5
M FLBRRNEEARER -
AMESHERFEME - ELEEH
%tﬂ_iwﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ*$
SEEMHEMBEE - Kt REEE
BRTHEEERR - EMEOTH
BEMEDANANEEWEIREF TR
SRAIT o MIHEBAKA IR F IR -
ERERKREEFIEN B R RER -

BHEEEENG 8 MRER
BHREEBEMNTERENHE - &
MIBRR(AENRBONEKRER) RE
MR KE - SHEZRORE RED
BRENERBERBERIE - WIZATHE
HERAR - BHMEEEBENFG
BRMENESRE  UELEONEA
REEETE

—®imE - BHEEEBERELAYD
ENAEENMBANRESRERRX
EEBEAHURDNAEREREERY
RERATETMERFRITR) ZHH
ERHE o

MB WAL WA E MR AE
¥ BRIEMBEELRERERE &
ERERT ﬂ§WA&%%§Fm
BIHRAFTE

AEREEBAEREER B RER
PRI TAMRERSKER - H
BHRYFRBEREHEERI - E
BB BB BB T IARER -

—E-NEER



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to ultimate holding company, amount due
to a photovoltaic facilities provider and other borrowing
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumption about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for
photovoltaic power generation

Tariff adjustment represents subsidy received and
receivable from the government authorities in respect of
the Group's photovoltaic power generation business.

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice issued in August 2013
by the National Development and Reform Commission
of the PRC, approvals for the registration in the
Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue ( A] § 4
8RR EEM NE € B B &%) (the “Catalogue”) on a
project-by-project basis are required for the settlement
of the tariff adjustment. In January 2020, the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC (the “Ministry of Finance"”),
the National Development and Reform Commission of
the People’s Republic of China (the “NDRC") and the
National Energy Administration (the “NEA") jointly
issued the Several Opinions on Promoting the Healthy
Development of Non-hydro Renewable Energy Power
Generation (BREEIFKAI B A REREBRRERY
HTER) (the “2020 Opinion”). Pursuant to the 2020
Opinion, the PRC government will no longer announce
new Catalogues from time to time. The Ministry of
Finance, the NDRC and the NEA also jointly issued the
Administrative Measures on the Additional Subsidies on
the Renewable Energy Electricity Prices (] B4 82R % E
BEMINESEEYE) in January 2020, which set out
that the state grid company will regularly announce a
list of solar power plants that are eligible for the tariff
adjustment subsidy (the “Renewable Energy Project
List”) upon approval by the relevant PRC authorities on
a yearly and project-by-project basis.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for
photovoltaic power generation (Continued)

Revenue from tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
generation amounting to RMB386,688,000 (2018:
RMB397,238,000) from the state grid company in the
PRC is recognised in which the operating solar power
plant is still pending registration in the Renewable
Energy Project List. As at 31 December 2019, total
contract assets amounted to RMB1,467,556,000 (2018:
RMB1,020,104,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the revenue recognition of tariff
adjustment is proper based on their judgement and
taking into account of the opinion from the Group’s
PRC legal advisor, that the Group’s operating solar
power plant has qualified for registration and has met
all the relevant requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Renewable Energy Project List. The
directors of the Company are confident that the Group’s
operating solar power plant is able to be registered in
the Renewable Energy Project List in due course and the
tariff adjustment receivables are fully recoverable upon
the allocation of funds from the PRC government.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
in the PRC

The directors of the Company have assessed the
exposure on deferred tax in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in the PRC with reference to the Group’s
intention to pay dividend, cashflows of the subsidiaries
in the PRC and the overall needs of operating cash of
the Group.

Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC starting from 1 January
2008 amounting to RMB829,741,000 (2018:
RMB832,096,000) as the directors are of the opinion
that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

TEHES ER)ERAT
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The followings are key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables
individually by considering the debtors’ historical
default rates and forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 30 and 19,
respectively.

Estimated write-down of inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged analysis
at the end of each reporting period, and writes down
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in operation. When
estimation of net realisable value is less than the
carrying amount, write-down of inventories may be
made. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of inventories is RMB16,423,000 (net of write-down of
slowing moving inventories of RMB2,111,000) (2018:
RMB29,511,000 (net of write-down of slowing moving
inventories of RMB1,170,000)).

Useful lives and impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives, the residual values, and the depreciation method
in determining the related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. In addition, management
assesses impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
expected to be shorter than expected, or will write off
or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned. As at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
RMB2,274,877,000 (2018: RMB283,777,000).

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated provision of defective claims

For the provision of defective claims, there are no fixed
terms of defective claims entered with customers. The
amount is based on the management’s estimation
by reference to the historical experience on defective
claims from customers. Management’s estimates
and assumptions are reviewed periodically and are
adjusted if necessary. Should any of the estimates and
assumptions change, it may lead to a change in the
provision of defective claims. As at 31 December 2019,
the carrying amount of provision of defective claims is
RMB13,998,000 (2018: RMB14,018,000).

Fair value measurement of initial recognition of financial
instruments at amortised cost

Contract assets and amount due to a photovoltaic
facilities provider are measured at fair value at the
initial recognition which were determined based on the
present value of the estimated cash flow discounted at
appropriate discount rate. Changing the assumptions
and estimations, including the estimated cash flow
and discount rate, could materially affect the fair value
of the financial instruments at initial recognition and
the imputed interest of the financial instruments that
recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 December 2019,
the carrying amount of contract assets and amount
due to a photovoltaic facilities provider amounting to
RMB1,467,556,000 (2018: RMB1,020,104,000) and
RMB908,071,000 (2018: nil), respectively.

TEHES ER)ERAT
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

Revenue from photovoltaic power generation
(note)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—ALFE

W gk & 2 EDE Y
AT RAEEF RSO

2018
—T-N\F
RMB’000

ARETT
(Restated)
(&&E7)

TR E Yas (T aE)

— Sales of electricity —ENHEE 144,699 151,900
— Tariff adjustment (note) —EEFHE(ME) 386,688 397,238
Sales of lighting products RAEREE 354,020 369,376
885,407 918,514

Note: As stated in sales contract, revenue from photovoltaic
power generation included tariff adjustment from the
state grid company in the PRC based on the prevailing
nationwide government policies on renewable energy
for solar power plants.

For photovoltaic power generation, revenue for the
year is recognised at a point in time when electricity is
generated and transferred to customer.

For sales of lighting products, revenue for the year
is recognised at a point in time when the control of
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
transferred to the customer’s specific location.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the
revenues and profits from different types of business
divisions.

M BMMEEEHOML  XARBESREREP
BHEREMRARBERITERBTRES
AGREHEMAIBLRERNEERE -

ARBEMS  FERESNBELERE
EFPNR—RRMEER -

REREQRENS - FEWNRZREH
BEL  NERCHBERS AN ERR®

w7 °

FEHERANTIN —FHATHRANETT -
BRBBMEHRELNEISHA A - LE
BENREZZERERENNIHE -

BRERSREFESBRRMALR AN
TEE(DEIBHEAKA(TERERE
X)) B BT S5 R RS P
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaksIER &)

(Continued)

The Group's operating and reportable segments under BIEE A ERELENESE (L& S| A

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are as follows: EFENKL LA RESIWOT -

(i) Photovoltaic power generation represents 0) HREEFERENNHEE - KBRS
sales of electricity, development, construction, REFE 2R BEREE( KRR
management and operation of a solar power BE]| -

plant (“photovoltaic power generation”).

(i) Lighting product business represents the sales (i RAEREBERAERHEE @ B
of lighting products including portable lighting BERBRAEESDR B2 RAEHAA8KHE
products, shades for the lamps, furniture set MREMHL([BEERMEE])

and other home accessory products (“sales of
lighting products”).

No operating segments have been aggregated in R WA EBE 5 ZPAF I EE RS LI o
arriving at the reporting segments of the Group.

Segment revenue and results pasi ey E

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and T AREEsEEI s AREB s R ELE
results by operating segment. DT ©

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_T—NF+_A=1+—HILFE

Photovoltaic Sales of
power lighting
generation products

HKREE RAERHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR T T

SEGMENT REVENUE pan:idl &
External sales SRS & 531,387 354,020 885,407
Segment profit (loss) DEREF(EE) 353,240 (1,050) 352,190
Unallocated income T B2 WA 780
Unallocated expenses TFREEZHAX

— Administrative and — TR REMEX

other expenses (19,526)

— Finance costs — W& R (360)

Profit before taxation & B B a1 333,084
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (restated)

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NAF+-A=+—RHIFE

WEK D EBERE)

DR E R EE(E)
BE T \F+-_A=+—HILFE#&
1)

Photovoltaic Sales of
power lighting
generation products Total

XRBRE RAERNE o

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARBT T

SEGMENT REVENUE pan:idl €
External sales SNERGH & 549,138 369,376 918,514
Segment profit 8854 464,225 6,095 470,320
Unallocated income NFHEZ WA 951
Unallocated expenses il ndib-

— Administrative and other —TH N EMS

expenses (16,707)

- Finance costs —-WKER (4,712)

Profit before taxation B 5 BT 4 449,852

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by
each segment and hence is arrived at without allocation
of certain income and expenses (including other income,
gains and losses, administrative and other expenses
and finance costs). This is the measure reported to the
CODM of the Company, for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

RED RGBSR AN E3ME AN EE
S BEAAR o 28R AR D BRI\
Ao B TEATFORETWARFEX (21
HpWA - Wk R EE - TRREMRES R
MEER)FE - WIRAARRRAEREERRE
ABENTTE - REETERD EMFED
HBRA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WE&EksBER (&)

(Continued)

Geographical information HEER

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the REBESBMNRES DRE(IABEETEE) M
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and North America. JEEM o

Information about the Group’s revenue from external REBREBEREEBRSNEYHMEIRE N
customers based on the location of goods physically EHOMEE N REINLELH W R LIRE
delivered to and location of electricity transmission ENHEBABE S HIERBEENER -

and information about its non-current assets based on
geographical location of the assets:

Non-current assets
(other than deferred
tax asset, deposit for

Revenue from other borrowing and
external customers rental deposit)
FRBEE
GEEBEEE  HttfERW#HAL
REHNBEF Y REEHSRN)
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hnE  —F)/\& CZB-NF T )\HF
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT ARETR ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(/=E75) (&%)
Hong Kong BB - - 16,827 3,002
PRC R EY 531,387 549,138 2,275,043 279,531
United States of America ER([EE])

("USA") 347,819 366,437 822 1,653
Canada mex 6,201 2,709 = =
Others Eith - 230 - -
Total revenue/ Wesuesm

non-current assets FREEE 885,407 918,514 2,292,692 284,186
Information about major customers ERTXTERFRF2EH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year NIBEFE  (AARNEEWNZSLZEBIBI10%H
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the ZRUEEHIOT

Group are as follows:

2018

—E-N\F

RMB’000

ARETFIT

(Restated)

(&E7)

Customer A (note) BEA(ME) 531,387 549,138

Customer B (note) =PB(MIEE) 113,160 150,805

Customer C (note) BEEC(M) 88,626 92,811
Note: The revenue from Customer A was derived from MiEE : REEAREBIU S RN REE - fEF

photovoltaic power generation and Customers B and C B CUENE Uk zs S R RRARE RN E -

were derived from sales of lighting products.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

Imputed interest income on tariff adjustment

6.

HBA - WERER

FLE BB IR

PAONRS)
—E-N\F
RMB’000

ARETIT
(Restated)
(&=751)

receivables (note 20) 2EF B U A (KIEE20) 34,715 20,906
Remeasurement on discounted present value — FEH st 2 FET RSB E ML FE

of amount due to a photovoltaic facilities HIAEZ BHIRIBE

provider 22,375 -
Remeasurement on discounted present value &t & BB FHEELK

of tariff adjustment receivables (note b) FRIA 2 BhIRIRME (P EDb) (29,569) (26,244)
Government grants (note a) BT B (ffsEa) - 25,618
Net foreign exchange gain M R U s F 5 1,008 151
Bank interest income HRITH B A 855 1,055
Sundry income FIE W 1,299 495

30,683 21,981

Notes: FfzE -

(a)

(b)

The government grants represented the amount
received from local government by the PRC subsidiary
of the Group in subsidising certain tax payments.
Government grants represented unconditional
incentive received in relation to activities carried out by
the Group.

It represents losses recognised from remeasurement
on discounted present value of tariff adjustment
receivables as the management of the Group
considered that the settlement of tariff adjustment
receivables are expected to be further delayed to March
2021 (2018: March 2020).

FINANCE COSTS

BT B R A R B R B E 2R E K
PR E THIERAS SRR - BT
BY) TR A7 55 [ A8 2 U B P B Y 4R AR 1
fHep -

HERENMGTEEERNERKKBEZHR
RERRZER DTHERNAEEREEER
R ERANEEREREGREARE-F
REE-_ZT-_—F=A(ZF-NF: =%
ZTEFE=R)o

Interest expense in other borrowing

Imputed interest on amount due to a
photovoltaic facilities provider

Interest on lease liabilities

Finance costs on bank borrowings and
bills payable

B%ER

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREFIT
(Restated)
(&=71)
HEmERFBEAES 73,648 -

FE T — R YRR L FE v
K FEEHF B 13,124 =
HEHENE 627 By

IRITIE S R ENEER

B8 A - 4,712
87,399 4,712
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. MRBADEF
PAONRS]
—ZET-)N\F
RMB’'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(g&E75)
Profit before taxation has been arrived BRI AT A2 0B
at after charging: TH&IE
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration B I (BIEZEEHSE)
(note 10) (B#zE10)
Salaries and other benefits e kHAET 53,203 51,008
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIRE TR B HEER 1,203 1,241
54,406 52,249
Allowance for obsolete and AR RFHT SRS
slow-moving inventories 859 387
Amortisation of intangible asset mEEEE 85 81
Auditor’s remuneration ZE NN & 1,144 1,046
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERRAAZOFERA 241,906 296,908
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #% - BE MREITE 64,724 9,048
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 3,212 =
Design and sampling costs, including staff costs 3&&t RN -
of RMB3,252,000 (2018: RMB3,425,000) BFEE TR A
AR#3,252,0007T
—T-N\F:
AR#3,425,0007T) 5,977 6,174
Operating lease rentals KEHERS
- rented premises —HEWE = 11,934
- photovoltaic facilities — KRR = 76,924
and after crediting: REFA
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment B - 63
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+-_A=+—BHIFE

28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax of
the qualifying corporation in the Group is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The profits of other corporations in the Group which are
not qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at the rate of 16.5%.

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FBHMX
PAONRS]
—N\F
RMB’'000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(&=E51)
Current taxation: RIERFR 1A -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH 1,414 2,839
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — B EMEH
(Te3kmEH 1) 21,654 2,305
- Withholding tax in the PRC — AR 13,500 1,697
— Overseas taxation —BINEEIE = 2
36,568 6,843
(Over)underprovision in prior years: AF(BEE) T B EE -
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH (163) (25)
— Withholding tax in the PRC — R EFER (900) 1,827
— Overseas taxation —BINEEIE - (413)
(1,063) 1,389
Deferred taxation charge (credit) (note 16) EEFIES (3K R)
(KzE16) 708 (344)
Total H%E 36,213 7,888
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZZE—NFE=ZA=-+—H FBILLER
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill B _E—L+EMB(EST)(E7H)EHER
2017 (the "Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered (TZBBIEER]) S AFEBRMES - %
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on BHRERZRR-_Z—NE=A-_+NEHLE

BAEY UYREBATE -BEINESHMRK
o AEREBE®EE2,000000E T 2%
A5 1£8.25% 2 F R B FL 18 - & F
i#%2,000,000/8 7T 2 & F ¥ 12 16.5% 2 T &
HWHIE TEER2HEFGHMAH 2%

BERE SN BEEIZSE —FER165% B
RE #E2E-_FT—NWF+_A=+—8L1LHF
I $EIA§% A ZBBRNEHIIRE
FERMEFNTE - TEERDEF B
mﬂ2$%@EMQTZmﬂh%%&M$
16.5% T8 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors
of the Company considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two tiered profits tax rates
regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

A subsidiary of the Company, being an enterprise
engaged in public infrastructure projects, under the
PRC Tax Law and its relevant regulations, is entitled
to tax holiday of 3-year full exemption followed
by 3-year 50% exemption commencing from the
respective year in which operating profit was derived.
The subsidiary of the Company which was engaged in
the public infrastructure projects has operating profit
since 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the subsidiary started its first year of the 3-year 50%
exemption period. The EIT incurred during the year
ended 31 December 2018 represents the taxation on
the government grants received from local government
by the PRC subsidiary of the Group in subsidising certain
tax payments. The PRC subsidiary is entitled to an
income tax rate of 15% as it is eligible as encouraged
industries in Western China ("FZbth[@ B SEE XD
).

The withholding tax represents taxation recognised in
respect of the dividend distributed from profit earned
by a subsidiary in the PRC under the Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law of the PRC that requires
withholding tax with tax rate of 5% upon the
distribution of such profits to the shareholders.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

TEHES ER)ERAT

FR8Bim<(#&)
BE_Z-N\E+_A=+—BLFE " &
REABERR  BIMNERMASERS R 2
THRUGEEMBERELFERKN - EEMNEHR
NEBE_T- \F+_A=1+—HLFE
IR RPN 216.5%5 & -

ARA—FEREAKLERRBEENOMBELR
A RETEBELEEERE  BREX
BRENELENABARFELE=FRHK
HREBE=F2H50%  RARKEARE
REFEEENZMBRATE T —RFLEA
gEEN #HE_T-AEF+_A=+—8H
LFE MEARFAREEFENS 0% =F
BB - BE_FT-N\F+_A=1+—HL
FEEENCEMESREASERFBEZ %
P I8 /2 =) A 4t 5 3 R T M ER R B B T B IR A
ROBIE - ZPEME AR EE ST ESLR
DRBEXCEMARZHEI5%NABEHN

& o

BB RN B A E AR RET B R
BHOEE MR DIHHE 2 REREE 25K AR
BHERNTE  CEAEHREERGIRE
A A B R 23 I i M) B ZB 4% 5 % RO TR SR S T 4
i o

785N A B B I8 T3 AR B A fib 5T R AR B s )
BB RARRORITREGE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at PRC EIT rate at 25%

(2018: Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised
Effect of tax exemptions granted to
PRC subsidiaries
Effect of withholding tax on distributed profits
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
in other jurisdictions
(Over)underprovision in prior years
Others

Income tax expense for the year

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 10.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid/payable to the directors
and the chief executive of the Company during both

years are as follow:

Directors’ fee
Other emoluments
— salaries and other benefits
— retirement benefits scheme contributions

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NAF+-A=+—RHIFE

9. MMBHMZE)
FAMEHRAYERGEBEREMEE K
=R MR AR A E RO T -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
(GESEIER))
(&=75)
R B B v ) 333,084 449,852
PR EMSHRE25%
—ZT-N\F  BEAME
FRFLE16.5%) 83,271 74,226
AR A S R IS 2
15,659 5,597
BERRIBANTR G E (14,477) (4,120)
%ﬁﬁwwﬁréﬂaaﬁ
Mga 8,361 4,621
A BAERERNHIEESE (367) -
FEHBARZEA R
GNis -2 (67,764) (77,520)
IR EF TR E 13,500 1,697
Haba) AR B A A
BMENRNHBEE (730) 2,058
FFEGRRE) TR BE (1,063) 1,389
HAt (177) (60)
FRMEHRAY 36,213 7,888

B FETBRAEBREEME

MEFEANEN, BNEARREREREET
BABZBEFFREDT

PACNE]

—/\%F
RMB'000

ARETIT
(Restated)
(&=75)

i 2
— 5 REMETR 1,858 1,745
_}E,M(%EEI%IJIJ_EUT/\TA 27 25

1,378 1,295

3,263 3,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 10.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

EE IRTRAEBREEME(2)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
HFeR EIREF
ok HAtE A HE 5 #@st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARET T ARET T ARET R
For the year ended BE-Z-NF
31 December 2019 +ZA=t-HLEE
Executive directors: WiTEE:
Mr. Dang Yanbao EEELAE - 1,646 16 1,662
Mr. Dang Zidong EBR%AE
(Chief Executive) (1T 48%;) = 212 1 223
Mr. Gao Jianjun SREERAE = - - -
Mr. Liu Yuanguan ATERE = = - -
Non-executive directors: EMTESE
Mr. Cheng Hoo HEkE 212 - - 212
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy ERERAE 318 - - 318
Independent non-executive BIUEMITES
directors:
Mr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony A#ELE 318 - - 318
Mr. Xia Zuoguan L 212 - - 212
Mr. Guo Xuewen MBI 318 - - 318
1,378 1,858 27 3,263

China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 10.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

EE  IRTRAEREEME(2)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme

Fees benefits contributions Total
Fek RIAREF
we H iz HEGEA Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
For the year ended HZ-2-N\E
31 December 2018 +ZA=t—-HLEE
(restated) (ZE5)
Executive directors: WirE=E:
Mr. Dang Yanbao EEEEAE = 1,546 15 1,561
Mr. Dang Zidong EBRELE
(Chief Executive) (1TE4%) = 199 10 209
Mr. Gao Jianjun (note b) mEE LA (D) = - - -
Mr. Liu Yuanguan (note b) B E (D) S - - -
Non-executive directors: EHITES -
Mr. Cheng Hoo BRxE 199 - - 199
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy EREEAE 299 - - 299
Independent non-executive BUFRTES:
directors:
Mr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AHELE 299 - - 299
Mr. Xia Zuoguan BheRAE 199 - - 199
Mr. Guo Xuewen PE A 299 - - 299
1,295 1,745 25 3,065
Notes: N
(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above (a) EXFERTES M DEFEERER

were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018, two
directors waived emoluments of RMB1,345,000.

(b)

AARRAEEEHRERYE A B
& EXAEIFMTEERBIUIFNTE
EZHMENREREUNARTDES DR
REERZE#E -

REBEE-_F-N\F+-A=+—A81L
FE MBEEHRUDMHEARE
1,345,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 10. EE - - FETHAEREEMS (&)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals hEREHFAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group MEFEFERN NEBREZESHFATHBE
included one director for both years. The details of —ZEZ - -WeFBEEN LY EBNEH
the emoluments are set out above. The remunerations 23 A TSNS 0T -
of the remaining four highest paid individuals are as
follows:
AONRS]
—E—)\F
RMB’000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Employees EE
— salaries and other benefits —Fre AR 11,058 10,062
— discretionary bonus — BB IEAL 371 2,736
— retirement benefits scheme contributions —RREFFH B R 48 82
11,477 12,880
The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid HBHNNEAEESESHATRFRANRE
individuals in the Group for the year were within the FELATEHER

following bands:

2019 2018
—EB-hF —T)N\F
No. of No. of
Employees Employees
EEHE EE#AE
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%8 7T
%1,500,000/8 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%8 7T
22,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 4,500,00187C
25,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,000,001-HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T
%5,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$6,000,001-HK$6,500,000 6,000,001/ 7T
26,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$6,500,001-HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7T
%7,000,000/ 7T - 1
4 4
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the MEFERN  AEBEBRERARTEESHALT
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including (BREERER)XNEMEHM - ERKS
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or REMASAN AR B 22/ - SEREE
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of W AE -

office.

China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—ALFE

11.

12.

DIVIDEND 11. RE
PAONRS]
—ZET-N\F
RMB’000
ARBT T
Dividends for ordinary shareholders FRERBD KB R A
of the Company recognised as distribution TBRAREAE ¢
during the year:
2019 Interim — 20 HK cents ZE-NFHE:
(equivalent to RMB18 cents) per share FRR208 ML (FEER
AR#189) 119,492 -
The Board does not recommend any final dividend for EEeV AgEZgd8EzE—_ET—-—NLE+_RB=
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). T-BLEFEEEERARBERE(ZE—-N
FfE)o
EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is ERERBNDERRAGHEE AEBEER
based on the profit for the year attributable to i A A R # 296,871,000t (ZF — N4 :
owners of the Company of RMB296,871,000 (2018: AR " 441,964,0007T ) AR A 7% @ 3% N
RMB441,964,000) and the weighted average number 19 A% #663,846,000 8 (=T — N\ 4F :
of 663,846,000 ordinary shares (2018: 611,161,000 611,161,000/ E @A) 5T HE -
ordinary shares) of the Company.
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were Bz 22— hEr-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years BFFEABMESZTEETTRAK  ReE
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. 25 BREERF)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y¥ - BRERZHE

Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction Solar
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress  power plant Total

BENZ  GA%E
THEEF &8 kit RE  HBIR ABHRER it
RMB'000 RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMB000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTn  ARMTn  ARETR  ARETn ARMIR

C0sT B
At 1 January 2018 KZZ-\E-A-H

(restated) (BEH) 1,585 4,424 7,758 3,848 118,538 90,118 226,271
Exchange adjustment EREE % 157 367 319 = = 939
Additions RE - - 965 2,739 78,511 - 82,215
Disposals HE - S S (542) = S (542)
Transfer i S S S S (196,122) 196,122 S
At 31 December 2018 R-B-\E+-f=1-H

(restated) (BEH) 1,681 4,581 9,090 6,364 927 286,240 308,883
Exchange adjustment EiEE 38 2 14 118 - - 318
Additions NE - 1,047 97 122 1,679 2,052,821 2,055,766
Transfer v - - - - (2,606) 2,606 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 1,719 5,648 9,329 6,604 - 2,341,667 2,364,967
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 317
At 1 January 2018 KZZ-\E-A-H

(restated) (=5 947 3,158 5,319 3,09 - 3423 15,943
Exchange adjustment S 61 9 305 193 = S 657
Provided for the year ENEE 64 1,004 1,254 349 - 6,377 9,048
Disposals e - - - (542) - - (542)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-\E+-f=1-H

(restated) (BEF) 1,072 4,260 6,878 3,09 - 9,800 25,106
Exchange adjustment EiEE 26 19 135 80 - - 260
Provided for the year EREE 67 47 1113 775 = 62,297 64,724
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-F=1-8H 1,165 4,751 8,126 3,951 - 72,097 90,090
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 554 897 1,203 2,653 - 2269570 2274877
At 31 December 2018 R-E-)\E+-A=1-H

(restated) (BEF) 609 321 2,212 3,268 927 276,440 283,777

China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - - BERRZREH)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other Lt MENEZEER (EEIERN)
than construction in progress are depreciated on a TIAEEEIE TS FRITE -
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
Land and buildings 4% or over the term of the +Hh RiEF A% IR (AREE
lease, whichever is shorter B
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease term HEYyEi(s 20% iR T EWENE
of rented properties, H(UAREE AE)
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33% RE HKER 20% - 33%
equipment Ba]
Motor vehicles 16%-20% RE 16% — 20%
Solar power plant 4% KEGREZE B 4%
The carrying value of land and buildings comprises: T MEFHEEEAE
2018
—E-)N\F
RMB’'000
ARETTT
(restated)
(g=E751)
Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong BT NETF 554 609
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged its RZE—AF+-_A=+—8 xEEB K
land and buildings with carrying value of RMB554,000 WHEmMEAARKSS4,000(ZE— N
(2018: RMB609,000) to secure a general banking facility £ AR609,000)H RIEF - EA
granted to the Group. REFEERT —RIRITHENER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

In May 2019, the Group has completed the acquisition
of the Equipment pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 23 March 2019 entered into between
the Group and a photovoltaic facilities provider and
the finance lease agreement dated 23 March 2019
entered into between the Group and Huaxia Financial
Lease Co. Ltd. (the “"Huaxia Financial”), which
is an independent third party to the Group. The
consideration of the Equipment under the sale and
purchase agreement amounted to RMB2,398,154,000,
which included value-added tax (“"VAT") in the
amount of approximately RMB330,780,000. The first
payment and second payment of the consideration
amounting to RMB1,700,000,000 was paid by
Huaxia Financial directly to the photovoltaic facilities
provider. The third payment of the consideration
amounting to approximately RMB698,154,000 would
be settled by way of assignment of the benefit of
the tariff adjustment receivables by the Group to the
photovoltaic facilities provider (the “Consideration
Tariff Adjustment Receivables”). The Group is
obliged to pay the amount received to the photovoltaic
facilities provider within ten business days of each
receipt from the state grid company, until the entire
amount is paid off. In the event that the Group fails to
receive the corresponding amount of tariff adjustment
receivables due to the PRC policy or other reasons
beyond the control of the Group, the Group will not
be obliged to pay such amount to the photovoltaic
facilities provider and the photovoltaic facilities provider
shall have no right to claim any damages against the
Group. Since the Group has no legally enforceable right
to set off the third payment of the consideration and
the Consideration Tariff Adjustment Receivables, the
Consideration Tariff Adjustment Receivables continued
to be included in contract assets. Please refer to note 20
for details.

Pursuant to the announcement on Relevant Policies
for Deepening Value-Added Tax Reform promulgated
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of
Taxation and the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, the VAT rate has been reduced from 16%
to 13% effective on 1 April 2019. Accordingly, the
photovoltaic facilities provider has agreed to reduce
the amount of the consideration to approximately
RMB2,336,133,000, which included VAT in the amount
of approximately RMB268,759,000. As a result of the
aforesaid adjustment to the consideration, the amount
of the third payment is reduced to approximately
RMB636,133,000.

TEHES ER)ERAT

13.

M - BERREE)

R-ZZF-NFHA  AEETHREAEE
E’Lﬁfﬂf\ REHEBI LA T —NF=

AZ+=ZHWNEEWZkAEEHEES
ﬁ%ﬁ@ R([EES€®)IYBHEA
—E-hAFZA-t=HAMmEAEmE
WEERE EEcRmAALEENBIYIE=
HoBEEERDE  ZxBENREAARE
2,398,154,0007T * & BIEZER ([EE
B )4 AR 330,780,000 c R{BHE —
SNFHMEEMRAR1,700,000,0007T
HEESHERRAARRGEBEEER N - R
EBME =N AREE98,154,0007T #%
HMAEE SRS EEEALRERITENFIZE
M REEEREFEF(TRESERABEK
ME]) - AEFERBXABRER QAR
BIFRER 18 %Ewmt1&mfﬁﬁ§
NZZE  EESNEHREAL - HAE
EH@Iﬁ%itﬁﬁﬁl$ﬂﬁE%ﬁ@
32 /M S RE U ER E (B 8 B e UK SR A9 B FE 3R
H o AEBEBHARCREREERSNA
BAIE mMrxREeEEIEERERAEE
REEMNEE - HRAEBIWES ERITE
ﬂﬁ%&ﬁmﬁféﬁ AN BEEBAERE
Wk REESEARERRENTAGY
ﬁE ﬁ%%%ﬁmﬁmo

BEFRSES  BEXRHEREREHERE
BHOEARFEEERREETEBRENA
S EERREN - AFNA—HIEHR
16%PfEZE13% Ay AR EHEFE R
EBRESERE AR L2,336,133,000
L EHREFIEERLYARE268,759,000
JC ° mﬂtkﬁfmﬂﬂ'”*%ﬁmmé
R E 4 ARH636,133,0007T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 1 January 2019

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—ALFE

14. FRAEEE

Leasehold
properties

HEM =
RMB’000
AR® TR

R-ZB-hF—-A—H

Carrying amount AREE 5,853
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-AF+=A=+—8H
Carrying amount REE 17,482
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_E—AE+-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge HEEH 3,212
Expense relating to short-term leases and other — H /X B A & B B SRS £ BISE 1657

leases with lease terms end within 12 months HE12@ARNERNEERNEHEE

of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 MEHAFEENRX

— rented premises — B 7,076

— photovoltaic facility — SR 36,324

43,400

Total cash outflow for leases HEREMLEEE 9,881
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFREEE 14,841

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses, factories and staff quarter for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of one to six years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
showrooms. As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

RBMEFE AEEHEZEARIE - &
B -ITHEEIESRAELZE HEAH
FRET LB E F IR —2NF - BEKRNRR
BRI EERER - BBEZEDRGER &K
o RETHERRFGETIHERRNE
A AREERAGHNERRETEAAON
ATTTHIMA -

AEEEHIVEERBROEHEE - N =
Z-NF+_A=+—RH BEHEEHAsH
i EERAERNENHEERAAA
i& o
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E SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

15. PREPAID RENTAL EXPENSES FOR
PHOTOVOLTAIC FACILITIES

Amounts of prepaid rental expenses for
photovoltaic facilities analysed as:
Current B EA

The Group entered into lease agreements for
photovoltaic facilities with an independent photovoltaic
facilities provider for a rental period from 18 May
2016 to 17 May 2017, with the annual rental payment
amounting to RMB90,000,000. The Group has renewed
the lease agreement for photovoltaic facilities for a
rental period from 18 May 2017 to 17 May 2019 with
total rental payment amounting to RMB180,000,000.
The full amount was paid in advance.

During the current year, the lease agreements were

completed upon the completion of acquisition of the
Equipment from the photovoltaic facilities provider.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEH ¥ (E) SR AT

AXRRERNEEER

2018
—E2—N\F
RMB’000

ARETIT
(Restated)

(&%)

KRR EBANEEE M
SEAFMT

= 36,324

AEEE-ZBT HREBIEEEEI L —1H
HREBHESHE  HEHE T FH
A+N\BE-_Z—+ERA++H FHE
458 A AR¥90,000,0007T - NEBEEZ
KRR EHERRE  HEHE _ZT—+tF 1
BT+ \BHE-_Z—hFRA++H " #E%
B ARE180,000,0007T » WEF 2K o

RAFERE - HE R TSR e KR e
BB SR IR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

DEFERRED TAXATION 16. ELEMIA

The followings are the major deferred tax (liability) asset LNTARAFERBIFERARNEZRT
recognised and movements thereon during current and HE(ABE)BENEES

prior years:

Temporary

difference on

unrealised

profits on

Accelerated tax intra-group
depreciation transactions

£ER

REEXS

REFBFIN
MEBIRTE L E 2 Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFTT ARBTT

At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE—NF—H—H

(FEE7)) (42) 598 556
(Charge) credit to profit or loss  (B#EZHI%):F AEZR (151) 495 344
Exchange adjustment P& 5, 2 (11) 65 54

At 31 December 2018 (restated) R=-—ZT— \4F

TZA=+—R(&E7|) (204) 1,158 954
Credit (charge) to profit or loss st A1B25(H1BENE) 62 (770) (708)
Exchange adjustment PE 5 A% (4) 9 5
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF
+=-A=+—H (146) 397 251
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances T AERRY B BEBRABELERIBLEGHDW ¢
for financial reporting purposes:
PAONRS]
—E-N\F
RMB’'000
ARBTFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Deferred tax asset BELEFIREE 397 1,158
Deferred tax liability RIERIESE (146) (204)
251 954
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIMERR  AEBZASAHREEEASA
had unused tax losses of RMB136,225,000 (2018: K #136,225,000 L (ZE—N\F: AR¥
RMB104,251,000) available for offset against future 104,251,0007T ) °] AAEE $5 AR R F] o AR
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in KREETE R :Z E M B A B HY R 0% R AR - #)
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of Gt T B E B R E T IBEE o

future profits streams of these subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_ZT-NF+_A=+—RLFE
16. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 16. EEMBIE (&)
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of AERANNEEERESERLERNTHNE
RMB15,742,000 (2018: RMB14,950,000) that will BARY15742,000(ZZE—\F : ARK
expire within 5 years and losses of RMB39,284,000 14,950,0007T) M# £ Z +F RN E BN BB
(2018: RMB25,501,000) that will expire within 20 years, AR®39284,000ic(ZFE—\F : AR
other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 25,501,0007T ) » H th % I8 &5 18 7] £ R #i 45
L o
Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect AREBVERMHBATNNRNFHFGHEA A T
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the AP IRRE %A 4 5B ARKS29,741,0007T
subsidiaries in the PRC amounting of RMB829,741,000 —ZT— \F : AR¥S32,096,0007T)ERIE
(2018: RMB832,096,000) as the directors are of the WEFTE - PR ESESR A ANEE 0] 4| E i
opinion that the Group is able to control the timing EENBEOBELEREBEIATRAATR
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is kg o
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
17. INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. BREEE
Brand name
fm ke
RMB’000
ARETTT
COST B
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZE-NF-—A—RBHKE=ET)) 802
Exchange adjustment HE 5 SRR 48
At 31 December 2018 (restated) RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—REEH) 850
Exchange adjustment fE 3 =& 20
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NAF+ZA=+—8H 870
AMORTISATION Hey
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZTE-NF—A—RBEET) SiElS
Charge for the year FRZH 81
Exchange adjustment B o, S 25
At 31 December 2018 (restated) RZE-N\FF+ZA=+—HEE?) 441
Charge for the year FRZIH 85
Exchange adjustment PE H A% 11
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF+ZA=+—H 537
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF+ZA=+—H 333
At 31 December 2018 (restated) RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—RHEEH) 409

mEZAERBBR - TABEREE TF#

The brand name has finite useful life and is amortised on
a straight-line basis over 10 years. g8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

18.

19.

INVENTORIES 18. ®E
PAONRS]
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBTIT
(Restated)
(& E5))
Finished goods BIRL M 16,423 29,511
During the year, there was a write-down of inventories FARLEFEARE859,000T(ZF—N
amounting to RMB859,000 (2018: RMB387,000) which & AR¥387,0007T) @ AR HEKAHER
was recognised in cost of sales.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B RHEAMEWRNKE
2018
—E—)N\F
RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(& =5))
Trade receivables g5 EN I 119,486 131,841
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B TEEREEEERE (741) (724)
118,745 131,117
Bills receivables (note a) FEWELE (MfzEa) 697 10,700
Other receivables and prepayment (note b) HAth B Y SR TE K FB S OB
(Mt5Eb) 229,113 11,186
348,555 153,003
Notes: Bt aE
(a) All bills received by the Group are within a maturity (a) FBAREEERERIIRN—FAEE -
period of less than one year.
(b) Other receivables and prepayment mainly consist of (b) HMEYRERENFIEEZBERMHE
payments in advance to suppliers and VAT receivable. PR N IR E R
As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts RZZE-—N\F—A—H REEFEHANE
with customers amounted to RMB147,915,000. SREYKRIAR ARE147,915,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE (Continued)
The Group normally allows credit period with a range
from 30 to 90 days to its customers. A longer credit
period may be granted to large or long established
customers with good payment history. The following
was an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for expected credit losses presented based
on the invoice date for sales of goods and electricity
transmitted dates at the end of the reporting period,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates.

B K ERYRKIEE)
AEEBERTEEPNFI0E0HANEE
B RERNEERRER THREHERTH
AEFRERBURPEBRENES - TX
IR HKE AR E ZEWRIE - MERTEH
EEBERE RERHEEREAHRES
B ARSI MEEST - ZRFAMERE
B WaFE R B BT

138

2018

—E—N\F

RMB’000

ARETIT

(GENEE))

(&E75)

0 to 30 days 0%230H 52,326 46,667
31 to 60 days 31£260H 30,468 28,462
61 to 90 days 61290H 20,551 19,895
Over 90 days B3iB90H 15,400 36,093
118,745 131,117

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the credit quality of each potential customer and
defines credit rating and limit for each customer. In
addition, the Group has reviewed the repayment history
of receivables by each customer with reference to the
payment terms stated in contracts to determine the
recoverability of a trade receivable.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB17,094,000 (2018: RMB20,937,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, RMB3,042,000 (2018:
RMB1,564,000) has been past due 90 days or more
and the directors of the Company considered there has
no default occurred as these trade receivables are still
considered fully recoverable due to long term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these
customers.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 30.

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEH ¥ (E) SR AT

REXEFAHEFA  AREEFEERE
EFMEEEERAETEREFPNERENR
TMERE - o AEBECDEHESREPBHE
EERYWRIBRLCE  YEB2EQHMAIIN
IR - AEEE SRR AT B -

RZFE—hE+=ZA=+—H &K%
MESERZIBELEGDEERLEAS
R # 17,094,000t (ZZE—NF : AR
20,937,00070 ) MW - B RER
WEBHBH RBEHNgEY AR
3,042,000( =& —\F : AR¥1,564,000
TT)DEERBORTEIA - ARNEZERS
BEERY HEEBHEERRTER L
ZEESEWGBENEATREWE - Biit
AAREERAZEFEMELREY -
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EHEESREMERIERETIGHEOFES
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20.

CONTRACT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the contract assets
represented the tariff adjustment receivables amounting
to RMB1,467,556,000 (2018: RMB1,020,104,000).
The amount would be received based on the prevailing
national government policies on renewable energy.
The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the Group’s respective operating solar farm is
registered in the Renewable Energy Project List pursuant
to prevailing national government policies on renewable
energy for solar farms.

The Group's contract assets for the photovoltaic power
generation are receivables from the state grid company.
The collection of the tariff adjustment receivables is
subject to settlement by the state grid company upon
registration of the solar power plant in the Renewable
Energy Project List by the Group. As the collection of
tariff adjustment receivables is expected in the normal
operating cycle, which may be more than 1 year, the
receivables are classified as current assets.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
revenue recognition of tariff adjustment is proper
based on their judgement and taking into account the
opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisor, that the
Group's operating solar power plant has qualified for
registration, and has met all the relevant requirements
and conditions for the registration in the Renewable
Energy Project List. The directors of the Company are
confident that the Group’s operating solar power plant
is able to be registered in the Renewable Energy Project
List in due course and the tariff adjustment receivables
are fully recoverable upon the allocation of funds from
the PRC government. The management of the Group
considered that the settlement of tariff adjustment
receivables are expected to be further delayed to March
2021.

The Group is obliged to pay the Consideration
Tariff Adjustment Receivables (note 13) amounting
of RMB636,133,000 and the assignment of tariff
adjustment receivables amounting of RMB300,000,000
to the photovoltaic facilities provider within ten business
days of each receipt from the state grid company,
until the entire amount is paid off. In the event that
the Group fails to receive the corresponding amount
of tariff adjustment receivables due to the PRC policy
or other reasons beyond the control of the Group, the
Group will not be obliged to pay such amount to the
photovoltaic facilities provider and the photovoltaic
facilities provider shall have no right to claim any
damages against the Group. Since the Group has no
legally enforceable right to set off the third payment
of the consideration and the Consideration Tariff
Adjustment Receivables, the Consideration Tariff
Adjustment Receivables continued to be included in
contract assets. For the assignment of tariff adjustment
receivables, please refer to note 27 for details.

20.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.01% to 2.45% per
annum as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 0.01% to
2.05% per annum).

The Group's bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant groups entities are set out
below:

HK$ BT
RMB AR

Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure bank facilities granted to the Group.
As at 31 December 2018, RMB1,349,000 had been
pledged to secure the issuance of bills payable, and
therefore classified as current assets (2019: nil).

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

BEMARITER RTEBRRES

R-ZB—hAE+_A=+—8 KT EZE
RITEBRIUATISEFRE00NER245E(=ZF
—N\E : FEFZEQ.01EE2.05FE):HAE -

A58 L0461 B SR L R T 0 DA S S0
EMRITEBERREBIIMT -

2018
—ZE-N\F
RMB’000

ARETTT
(Restated)
(&&E7)

134,671 117
189 13

EEMRITEFFEER T RITUDNER TR
SENRITRENTNR - R_T—/\F+=
A=+—8H ' AR#%1,349,0007T 2 # 7 LAER
BROTENRE AU BERRBEE(-F
—hEF &)

Trade payables

Bills payable for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Accrued sales commission

Construction payables

Other payables and accruals
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22, BESRHEMEMNTIE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

(Restated)

(&&E=7))

g S FIE 48,878 59,190
BEWE  BEE&E

Z BT RE - 1,349

SRS 588 617

JES TR2FKIE 13,793 34,492

H b A K18 N BT FUR 14,313 17,888

77,572 113,536




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 22.
The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group
ranged from 30 to 60 days. The following is an aging
analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

B5 R EMBAREE)
HEBAETAEEI0E60ANEEH - TX
IR BERRNESENRBREZEH
I RBRER DT -

2019 PAONRS]
—E-NE —ZE—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
(GESEIER))
(&E5)
0 to 30 days 0%30H 46,539 38,800
31 to 60 days 31260H 431 17,250
61 to 90 days 61290H 230 1,207
Over 90 days HBiE90H 1,678 1,933
48,878 59,190
LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HES®E
2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Lease liabilities payable: HEBREAEN T HEEE :
Within one year —&FER 5,441
Within a period of more than one year but not  —4% & R 4F HiRI
more than two years 5,159
Within a period of more than two years but not  ® 4 & F1 4 B
more than five years 8,222
18,822
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months & : RENEEE FAT/R121E A RE BB E
shown under current liabilities B FIE (5.,441)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months EmEBBEENRI2EAZIBHEED
shown under non-current liabilities FIE 13,381

Lease obligations that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity are set out below:

HK$ BT

LHBEEERBNAEEEINEEENE
EAEHINET -

2019
—E-hF

RMB’000
ARBT T

13,746
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

24. PROVISION 24. BB
The balance represents the provision of defective claims, ERIERERERE  UTABRENES
and the movements of provision are as follow:

RMB'000
ARETIT

At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE—N\F—A—HEEEY]) 8,717
Charge to profit or loss ERi=Engi] i3S 15,842
Utilisation of provision A (11,338)
Exchange adjustment kS 797
At 31 December 2018 (restated) R_E—N\F+_A=+—HUE=ET) 14,018
Charge to profit or loss giEmk 18,931
Utilisation of provision B A (19,263)
Exchange adjustment b 5 8 & 312
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-HE+=-_B=+—8 13,998
There are no fixed terms of provision of defective claims HEPIVHHEERBALBAERERE
stated in the sales agreements entered with customers. HETEKH BESEDREEELLEA
The amount of provision is based on the management’s bt AEEREERREBEERER
estimation by reference to the historical experience. The BEREABEUNENZSZHERIMELE
Group accrued liability for potential defective claims at afEo

the time of sale to cover potential liabilities that could
arise under these sales transactions.

25. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 25. BENBRAERARRNIEA
COMPANY \
The amount was non-trade nature, unsecured, interest- ,*éj\I,EﬁiE%’f%'IEE CEEE 2R RERE
free and repayable on demand. SRIBE o
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HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—ALFE

26. OTHER BORROWING

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMET T
Carrying amount repayable as follows AEENREENAT
(based on the scheduled repayment (FBEEREE)
dates)
— within one year —— %N 31,927 -
- between one to two years ——EEWF 191,449 -
— between two to five years —MEERF 460,023 =
— between five to ten years —hEE+F 799,917 =
— after ten years —+F1% 182,192 =
1,665,508 -
Analysed as DR
Current mED 31,927 -
Non-current ERE 1,633,581 -
1,665,508 -

The amount represented the first payment and
second payment of the consideration amounted
to RMB1,700,000,000 as described in note 13 and
accrued finance charges. During the current year,
the Group’s other borrowing carries interest at 1.22
times of benchmark interest rate of over five-year
borrowing formulated by the People’s Bank of China
per annum. As at 31 December 2019, the other
borrowing is secured by the Group’s solar power plant,
trade receivables from photovoltaic power generation
and tariff adjustment receivables with carrying
amount of RMB2,269,570,000, RMB8,804,000 and
RMB564,432,000, respectively. The Group has pledged
the issued share capital of ZEEH L RETHE R

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
in favour of Huaxia Financial as a security for the other
borrowing. In addition, the Group has paid a deposit
amounting to RMB20,400,000 to Huaxia Financial, for
the pledge of the borrowing and it could be used to
offset the installment repayments, subject to certain
conditions.

RIEEW 13T RENE — SR

_%H /\Eﬁ%woooooooo;zww’éﬁ
HBER  AFE  AEEMHMERRE
PEARBITHGINAEFEERELEFENREY
122558 - RZE—NF+_A=+—
=N ﬁwﬁ*”mZK%@HEE{E SRl A AR
2,269,570,000 7T * /\EMS,SM,OOOTE&A
%564432000%&@7:5@ S =P
RBEENE 5 EKRRE F.ﬂ%ﬁél&m
EHRAR - ZK%lauﬁéﬁmmme&ﬁ
ARABEEE2ENBRAREET Y HIREE
BRABNBEHTRA - EAHEMERNE
o ltih REBEHREESBRIMNZEA
R#20,400,0007T @ LAIEIR{ERR - M E B
EI S D HAEE R TE - B TIEMATIRR -

Annual Report 2019 —F— hEEH

143



For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

27.

AMOUNT DUE TO A PHOTOVOLTAIC

FACILITIES PROVIDER

The amount represented the third payment of the
consideration amounted to RMB636,133,000 payable to
the photovoltaic facilities provider as described in note
13 and an assignment of tariff adjustment receivables
amounting to RMB300,000,000 by the Group to the
photovoltaic facilities provider. Pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement dated 23 March 2019 entered
into between the Group and the photovoltaic facilities
provider, the Group has assigned tariff adjustment
receivables amounting to RMB300,000,000 to the
photovoltaic facilities provider upon the receipt of the
first and second payments from Huaxia Financial. The
Group is obliged to pay the corresponding amount
of tariff adjustment receivables received to the
photovoltaic facilities provider within ten business days
of each receipt from the state grid company, until the
entire amount is paid off. In the event that the Group
fails to receive the corresponding amount of tariff
adjustment receivables due to the PRC policy or other
reasons beyond the control of the Group, the Group will
not be obliged to pay such amount to the photovoltaic
facilities provider and the photovoltaic facilities provider
shall have no right to claim any damages against the
Group.

During the year, the fair value of the amount due to
a photovoltaic facilities provider of RMB862,949,000,
excluding VAT of RMB73,184,000, at initial recognition,
amounting to approximately RMB844,138,000, was
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at 2.68% per annum.

TEHES ER)ERAT

27.

A R ARR R R TR

FRIBHE M FE 13 BT Al B A S AR AR At FE R R (B
HE =S8N ARY636,133,000T R AEE
X RREREDEZEEAZEBTEA
R ¥300,000,0007T ° AR5 2N 5 B 8 Y (R A&
HENEYTARA-—S—NE=A=-+=H
MEEHS  AEECERKIEESRFE —
ERE_EMNARBRAARIEHEREES
B E U I AR 300,000,000 » Ak
EENBRERREMAARKIEEHLRE
U SR TE A9 AR FE B R T 1E 2 ¥ B R A IRER
MHERYNZAE EE2XN2BRES
1E o AR5 B A A B R AR sk R AR B4
0[] A E A 3B B T oK B U BN B (B 5 I IR
THM B FRIE - ANE B 5 B8 M K& et
EEXANEBERIE  MAREEHERSE
ERAEERETMIEE -

FR - EBRHARSEHEBEREBEAR
M 862,949,000 ot (i B EH A R &
73,184,0007T) * REXEREAFELNBA
R¥844,138,0007T ' RIEIL2.68% HyF F| &
BRI A RIS REREET »
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28.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1 January 2018,
31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

RRE ¢

Issued and fully paid: BETRHE -

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLLFE

&N

Share
capital

Number of
shares
B EE

FREEC.0VETLZ HEMR
R=ZF—-N\&E—A—H"
—E-N\F+=A=+—H
E=F-NEF+=-A=+—H

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEC.0VE Lz EiER

at 1 January 2018
Issue of ordinary shares (note)

At 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 96,150,000
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 per share of
the Company had been placed to its ultimate holding
company, Fung Teng Enterprises Limited, at the price
of HK$2.6 per share. The shares issued rank pari passu
in all respects among themselves and with the existing
issued shares.

Shown in the financial statements as

R_T-NF—A—H
BT E R (EE)

R B RE AR

R=F-N\Ft-A=+-AR
—F-nF+-A=+-8

800,000,000 8,000
567,696,000 5,677

96,150,000 961
663,846,000 6,638

REBE-_ZTE—NE+-_A=+—HIEE -
AN A FMEEO0.0178 7T 296,150,000 A% &
BREANER26BTZEBRES FTERKIE
RARIEEDEERAR - ZEDHTHRND
REFERGZEREREEEETRHEES
EEHAr -

At At
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
R=-ZB—h&E R-Z
+=—A=+—H

=+—H
RMB’000
AREFT
(Restated)
(#&£=71))

RMB’000
AR® T

5,515 5851115
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

29.

30.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EXEBER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be AEBEREEA  BESAEEHEER
able to continue as a going concern while maximising FERRETE  BEAEEAFELYE
the return to shareholders through the optimisation TMARRGIEFRALTR - KEBREE R
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall BAFEZETE -
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, REBRNBEAREREERZB(BED IR
which includes the amount due to ultimate holding Mi3E25 ~ 27 ~ 23 26 B HY JE M AR AR
company, amount due to a photovoltaic facilities NAFRIE - B KX RERREERRE HE
provider, lease liabilities and other borrowing disclosed BEEREMES KBRS LRREEEY) R
in notes 25, 27, 23 and 26, respectively, net of cash and REBHEAE AELEDS(BEDBITRALEE
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of &) o
the Group, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The management of the Group reviews the capital AREESTEETHRTERNGRE  ZE5HHE
structure regularly, taking into account of the BAMEBOKAMEAR - BRIEAEEEIEE
cost and risk associated with the capital. Based on NEDS AEEERBESNRBEMEITR
recommendations of the management of the Group, the 5 A EEBRERER -
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends and issue of shares.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. BMIEITH
30a. Categories of financial instruments 30a. BT AR
2018
—E-)N\F
RMB’000
AREFTT
(Restated)
(=E51)
Financial assets IS EE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHK ARG BN
BE 324,915 220,782
Financial liabilities HMBEaRE
Amortised cost B A 2,639,089 100,404
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30.

e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=+—ALFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. BMIBEIA®
30b. Financial risk management objectives and 30b. MEEMEREBFERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, rental deposit,
deposit for other borrowing, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities, amount due
to ultimate holding company, amount due
to a photovoltaic facilities provider and other
borrowing. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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Market risk 5 E
() Currency risk (0 B R R

The Group has limited currency exposure
as the majority of the revenue were
denominated in functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting date are as follows:

B AR B K B0 0 e ek LA A B
SEERZEEHIE -
AZHEERRAR

REREHR - REBUINE
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2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARETF T
(Restated)
(&&=7))
Assets EE
HK$ BT 134,671 117
RMB AR 189 13
Liabilities aE
HK$ ST 13,747 A

Assets and liabilities denominated in
HK$ mainly represented bank balances
placed with banks and lease liabilities
held by relevant group entities with RMB
(2018: US$) as functional currency. Assets
denominated in RMB mainly represented
bank balances placed with banks held
by relevant group entities with US$ as
functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
30b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in RMB against the relevant foreign
currency HK$. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A negative
number below indicates a decrease in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK$. For a 5% weakening of RMB
against HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and the
amounts below would be positive.

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2019,
no sensitivity analysis for the currency risk
of RMB is prepared as the directors of
the Company consider the impact of such
foreign currency risk is insignificant.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no
sensitivity analysis for the currency risk is
prepared as the directors of the Company
consider the impact of such foreign
currency risk is insignificant.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to lease liabilities (see
note 23 for details). The Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances and variable-
rate other borrowing. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on five-year borrowing
formulated by the People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s other borrowing.

The directors consider the Group's
exposure of the bank balances to interest
rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and thus it is not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For interest bearing other
borrowing, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole
period. A 10 basis points increase or
decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rate on interest bearing other
borrowing had been 10 basis points
higher/lower and all of other variables
were held constant, the profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would have
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB174,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group has significant concentration of
credit risk. At 31 December 2019, 93% (2018:
89%) of the total trade receivables and contract
assets/tariff adjustment receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer, while 99%
(2018: 98%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets/tariff adjustment receivables was
due from the Group’s five largest customers
at 31 December 2019. These customers have
good repayment history and credit quality under
internal assessment by the Group. The Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk on
financial assets other than trade receivable and
contract assets/tariff receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated the
responsible personnel for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and the directors
of the Company continuously monitor the
level of exposure by frequent review of the
credit evaluation qualities of its customers to
ensure prompt actions will be taken to lower
exposure. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade balances individually.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

Management assessed the expected loss on
trade receivables individually by estimation based
on historical observed default rates, general
economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

In addition, the management is of the opinion
that there has no default occurred for trade
receivables past due over 90 days and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable
due to long term/on-going relationship and good
repayment record from these customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group assesses the impairment for its
customers in relation to its operation of sales
of lighting products individually by considering
the debtors’ historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue
costs or effort. As at 31 December 2019, the
expected losses rate of these non-credit impaired
customers in relation to the operation of sales
of lighting products is minimal, given there is
no history of significant defaults from customer
and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimations. The assessed ECL for non-credit
impaired customers are not significant. ECL of
RMB741,000 was provided on credit-impaired
balance as at 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
30b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach.

30. BB IA#E)
30b. MHEAMEZERBRREE(E)

ER AR R E G (&)

TRINTREBIEIDEERE 5 R
REEANE N EEEEED -

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
Impaired)

2 HIFEH
EEEER
(EERE)
RMB’000
AR TR

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
Impaired)

2HEH

FEER
(BRIEERE)
RMB*000
ARBT

As at 1 January 2018 and

31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
(restated) +-A=+—H
(&&E35)
Exchange adjustment BE S
As at December 2019 RZE—NF
+-A=+—H

The Group writes off a trade receivables when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when
the trade receivables are over three years past
due, whichever occurs earlier.

For trade receivables from photovoltaic power
generation and contract assets, the debtor is
a state grid company and the directors of the
Company considered the impairment on the
trade receivables generated from photovoltaic
power generation and the contract assets are
insignificant to the Group. The contract assets is
subject to settlement by the state grid company
upon registration in the Renewable Energy
Project List.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is
limited as the Group has procedures and policies
in place to ensure they are from banks with high
credit quality.

In determining the ECL for other receivables and
rental deposit, the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate, for example, the group has
considered the consistently low historical
default rate in connection with payments, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding other receivables is insignificant.

The management of the Group considers the
pledged bank deposits and bank balances are
short-term in nature and the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-
rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance
was considered as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30b.

30c.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms and lease liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest dates on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both
undiscounted cash flows and principal cash
flows.

Liquidity tables

Weighted On
average  demand
effective or less
interest than
rate 1 month
nEER  EEfY
WHE  HR-ER
% RMB'000

30.

13
months
-ERZ

=R
RMB'000

gy N =NE D)
30b. MEEMEEAEREE(E)

3 months
to 1year
=R
B¢
RMB'000
AEETT

HEBE LR ()
TRAVAEEFTEVBREER
BEERRGEALEEABNHRTAH
HIRR - TRIIRIBA S B 7] g 2B 5k
EFRN&FAMENMERERRY
REGRERE - TREXRPRR
EREMACTHERE -

RBEE R

Total Total
undiscounted  carrying
cash flows amount
#ER
RenesE
RMB'000
ARETT

1-2 25 Over
years years 5 years

-EfE

3113
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR

EBnE
RMB000
n‘l‘\E‘m ,TE

REELE
RMB'000

AERTT

At31 December 2019 HZZ-nFt2hz1-H
Trade and other pajables BAREMEATE - S 1 - - - S 1 I 41
Other borrowing A 1.5 10,257 19117 89,710 282,256 760,744 1257327 2420011 1,665,508
Amount due to a photovolaic ERE R ERE
faciltes provider 268 - - - 936,132 - - 936,132 908,071
Lease liabiities HERE 448 54 1,083 4,621 6,024 9,751 - 21,963 18,822
10,781 86,210 9331 122441 70495 1257321 3443616 2,657,911
At31 December 2018 (restated) ~ W=E-N\E+ZA=t1-A
(&85))
Trade and other payables EARARERTE - = 93364 = = = = 93364 93364
Amount due to ulimate ERARAERATNE
olding company - 7,040 - - - - - 7,040 7040
7,040 93364 - - - - 100,404 100,404
Fair value 30c. A¥E

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis. The directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair
values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
and the related asset arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
and the related asset arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At1 January 2018
(restated)
Financing cash flows
Finance costs
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018
(restated)

Efect adoption of
new standard of HKFRS 16

At 1 January 2019

Financing cash flows

Finance costs

Inception of leases

Purchase of solar power plant

Remeasurement on discounted
present value of amount due to
a photovoltaic facllites provider

Dividend declared

Bxchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

“E-N\E-A-A
(#E7)

BERERE

BERK

Exgx

R-F-NEtzAzt-R
(871

e
EZ16% 028

W=E-NE-A-A

BLRLhE

BRI

HERS

BEARREER

B EEML AR
BHELBRE

i
Exae

RE-NETZRZ1-H

Lease
[iabilities

RAAR
RMB000

AEETT

Amount
due to
ultimate
holding
company
EfiR&
BRATEE
RMB'000
AEETT

Amount
duetoa
photovoltaic
facilities
provider
 3ip 63
fiEmR A
RMB'000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Deposit
for other
borrowing
RipER
i
RMB'000
AE%%i

Other
horrowing

Bank
horrowings

Dividend
payable

Interest
payable Total
BfR
RMB'000
ARETT
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RMB000
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Efthe &
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RMB000

Aﬁﬁ%i

- - - - - mES - - S

- M - - S @) -

- - - - - - am - am

- - - - - 6Mm - -6
M - - - - - - M
5853 . : = = : . -
5883 1040 = . : : - -0
(805 (00 300000 (20400 (108,140) - - (ms) o
o1 - B B Y - - -
14,841 - - - - - - B TR Y
g ) = 1,700000 : : X!

. - ) . - - - - )

. - - - - - S Y 1)
306 - - - - - - - 306
1882 - B (20400) 1,665,508 - - - 25T

Annual Report 2019 —B—hEFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The Group's land and buildings with carrying value of
RMB554,000 (31 December 2018: RMB609,000) were
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group. As at 31 December 2018, RMB 1,349,000
were pledged to a bank for issue of bills payable.

As at 31 December 2019, the other borrowing is
secured by the Group’s solar power plant, trade
receivables from photovoltaic power generation
and tariff adjustment receivables with carrying
amount of RMB2,269,570,000, RMB&,804,000 and
RMB564,432,000, respectively. The Group has pledged
the issued share capital of ZEEE L KBEEHR A A,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
in favour of Huaxia Financial as a security for the other
borrowing.

33. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments recognised under
operating leases in respect of rented premises
and photovoltaic facilities during the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZRF
Over five years fidzpic Ak
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33.

34.

OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, operating lease payments
represented rentals payable by the Group for certain
of its staff quarters and office premises. Leases were
negotiated and rentals were fixed for lease terms
ranging from one to six years.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those
employees of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs with the maximum monthly amount of HK$1,500
to the scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified range
of payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The Group’s subsidiaries in USA operate defined
contribution schemes. Contributions to the defined
contribution schemes are made at a certain percentage
of the employee’s payroll.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
RMB1,203,000 (2018: RMB1,241,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 represents contributions
payable to these schemes. As at 31 December 2019,
contributions of RMB45,000 (2018: RMB85,000) due
in respect of the reporting period had not been paid
over to these schemes. The amount were paid over
subsequently to the end of the reporting period.

33.

34.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wE B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

35. BEAREE

PAONRS)
—E—)N\F
RMB’000

AREFT
(Restated)
(&g&E7)

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition WEEWZE - B=E &

of property, plant and equipment contracted  FREMNERFH L -
but not provided for EEEEGE S 2,663 13,336

36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Transaction with a related company
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had also entered
into the following transaction with a related

party:

Name of related party

BEALER REME

Note: ZEEBEZXKEFTHAMRAA, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a service agreement with ZEE &
LAERYISEEMRAAF], a company established
in the PRC which is controlled by Mr. Dang
Yanbao, the Chairman and executive director
of the Company, with an annual service income

of RMB28,400 (2018: RMB28,400).

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel
is determined by the management of the
Company having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

China Baofeng (International) Limited FE =2 (EIBR) SR AR

Nature of transaction

36. BAEALTHE
(a) HEBEATTINRS
BREAMBREEMBBOFARES
Sh - AREHEAREE AT INET A TR
% H

PAONRS]
—F—)N\F
RMB’000

AREFIT
(Restated)
(&=7))

Service income (note)

ARAS A A (B 5E)

28 28

D ARRIZEEEENBAREEE
LRREEFARAFIEEEEL
BB ER AR (ARPBEKZHN
Al BARAEERITESTEE
BREESDEILREAL - FER
BERAARK28400L(ZF—
\F  AR®28,4007T) °

(b) FEEEASHM

TREBABZMENARRERRE
BBEBARRETSBBRETE
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Name of subsidiary

HEATER

Directly owned

EERE
Mastercraft Worldwide Limited

Jing Pai Management Limited
RRERERAR

Stand Nice Limited
RIBRAT

Indirectly owned

L3 2

Mastercraft International Limited
SHERRERAT

Mastercraft China Limited
SHERRERAF

Mastercraft Home Furnishing
Development (Dongguan) Limited

BERHHE(RE)ARAAN

Mastercraft Overseas Limited

Mastercraft Distribution USA Inc.

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

EMERL/

R

The British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")

ZERAEE
(RBEZRE))

BVI
RBRAHS

Hong Kong (“HK")
BE(E8))

HK

HK
B

PRC
hE

BYI
RBRAES

USA
XH

Principal
place of
operation

IRERME

HK
BA

HK

BR

Bk

HK
B

HK
B

PRC
i

HK
B

USA
28

37. AR REIZMBATFE

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group

rEBEERE
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-R
2019 2018
ZE-NE ZE-NF

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
BRORARRAE/
AfER

US$6 ordinary shares
6RTEBR

US$1 ordinary share
1ETERR

HK$1 ordinary share
B ERR

HK$348,900
ordinary shares
348,900 T E B

HK$2 ordinary shares
BT EBR

HK$23,000,000
registered capital

23,000,0007C
Fiaip-¥N

US$1 ordinary share
IXTEER

US$1 common stock
1ETERR

Annual Report 2019 —B—hEFH

Principal activities

IBXE

Investment holding

SRR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding and
provision of administrative
services

REARRRRRTRRS

Design and supply chain
business of lightings and
home furnishing products

RARZREHm
Fet Rt EEER

Production of prototypes
of lightings and home
furnishing products

RARFE Hmtk R L E

Production of prototypes
of lightings and home
furnishing products

RARFEHRERLE

Investment holding

REZR

Wholesale distribution of
lightings and home
furnishing products

RERKEHRBEDH
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 37. XRATRZMBLBRFEEE)
COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principal Equity interest Issued and fully
incorporation/ place of attributable to paid share/
Name of subsidiary establishment operation the Group registered capital Principal activities
EREL/ BRARBRERE/
HREARER R TEELHY REEELRE ERER IERH
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-H
2019 2018
=E8-0F ZT)\F
Couture Lamps, Inc. USA USA 100% 100%  US$1 common stock Wholesale distribution of
xH e 1ETEER lightings and home

furnishing products
RARKE it %0

Honest Joy International Limited HK HK 100% 100%  HKS$1 ordinary share  Investment holding and
ARERERAR B B3 1B ERR provision of administrative
services

BABBR R TR

EEEEE NERERARAA PRC PRC 100% 100%  RMBA400,000,000 Investment holding
(Formerly known as G i registered capital AR
RIS ELSHERERRAR)N A& 400,000,007
iax
ERELAREEARLA PRC PRC 100% 100%  RMBA400,000,000 Photovoltaic power
i i registered capital generation
AR%400,000,000  FREE
ihER

. REFBERIIHINERZE

Foreign investment enterprise established in the PRC

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities RREFER  HBARBETAEEITE
at the end of both years. TEES ©
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38.

39

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group has completed the
acquisition of the Equipment. The consideration for
the equipment under the sale and purchase agreement
amounted to approximately RMB2,336,133,000,
which included VAT in the amount of approximately
RMB268,759,000. The first payment and second
payment of the consideration amounting to
RMB1,700,000,000 was paid by Huaxia Financial
directly to the photovoltaic facilities provider. The
third payment of the consideration amounting to
approximately RMB636,133,000 would be settled by
way of assignment of the benefit of the Consideration
Tariff Adjustment Receivables.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19") in early 2020 and the subsequent
quarantine measures and travel restrictions imposed
worldwide may have impact on the Group’s operations.
For the Group’'s photovoltaic power generation
business, the photovoltaic power generation process
is not labour intensive and the daily operation of the
solar power plant has not been affected. The directors
of the Company was not aware of any material adverse
impact on the financial performance of the Group’s
photovoltaic power generation business as a result of
the outbreak of the COVID-19.

For the Group's sales of lighting products business, the
production lines of the Group’s suppliers for lighting
products were suspended for a short period of time
after the Chinese New Year Holidays, and had gradually
resumed normal production in March 2020. Since there
are uncertainties about how the pandemic will evolve
as at the date of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company consider that the financial
effects on the Group’s sales of lighting products
business cannot be reasonably estimated and will
continue to monitor and assess the impact of COVID-19
on the Group'’s sales of lighting products business. The
financial impact, if any, will be reflected in the Group’s
future financial statements.

39.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLFE

FTEFRERS
FROAEBEETHRKREZZE - BRE
EEWE  ZAXBOREHAARE
2,336,133, 000 T (B M E R H AR
268,759,0007T) - RKEME —ENHMEZ
S AR®1,700,000,000 T HEE S B
BEERXARGEHRERIMS RENE=ZS
AR E636,133,000 0155 B2 R (E
BEABREBFIBBOFSES -

WMEHRER
TECEENBRE T -NEBREFS
([COVID-19]) - it & ith B 12 F e b RIS
MR IREER G HoWAREENEBEERKRY
2o RAEBNLREETESMS - AR
REBERIESEBREATST » AGEEE
BHEELEAITE - ARRAEFIT T
B RAEZECOVID-19M A REE KBS
ENNMBRBEMSRNAETE -

PRASERBRAEREHHEMNS - AEER
PREMBEERNEESRTEEENFBE
REER YR_T_TF=AZHEEILE
FAEE ARREAMBHRRBMRBESS
IREETEERE  ARREER/AE
ERRPAEREBHENMBEZETEELS
IRFEH - WA AR SR MAFACOVID-19% A
SHEAEREHHERRNEE - MY
B (0B ) 70AN SR B RO R R B 75 Sk P R BR

—E-NEER
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40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 40. AATZEBMKER
COMPANY
2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARETT
(GESEIED))
(i=&71)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - WERRE 875 356
Right-of-use assets FREEE 12,677 =
Investment in a subsidiary BRERKBAA 416,198 407,276
Rental deposit HEHRS 1,167 =
430,917 407,632
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H e d o8 6 1,982
Dividend receivable FE U A% B 70,650 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE S 34,430 33,766
Bank balances and cash BITESR MRS 3,398 4,000
108,484 39,748
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables Hoh & T IR 1,639 1,639
Amount due to ultimate holding company e R IR A B 5R0E - 7,040
Amount due to a subsidiary et — B A RHRIE 30,010 12,028
Lease liabilities HEAR 4,236 =
35,885 20,707
Net current assets REBEETFHE 72,599 19,041
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRTHER 503,516 426,673
Non-current liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 9,510 =
Net assets EEZE 494,006 426,673
Capital and reserves BB #E
Share capital R A 5,515 5,515
Reserves fEiE 488,491 421,158
Total equity BRERET 494,006 426,673

China Baofeng (International) Limited HEH ¥ (E) SR AT
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40.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 40. EAATZEHMBER (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Movement of reserves: BEEH)
Accumulated
Share Special  Translation profits
premium reserve reserve (losses) Total
2R,/
R &E KhRE ERAR (B#8) H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARMTL ARETL  ARMTL  ARETR
(note)
(PzE)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZZE-\E-A—-B(EE5) 246,527 13,464 (4,185) (45,298) 210,508
Loss and total comprehensive FREBLR2ARY AR
expense for the year - - - (19,727) (19,727)
Exchange difference arising on M EEHERZIEY
translation from functional EENELZE
currency to presentation currency - - 18,009 - 18,009
Issue of ordinary shares BTLBR 212,919 = = = 212,919
Share issue expenses RAETER (551) o 5 o (551)
At 31 December 2018 (restated) ~ R=ZE—-\E+-A=+—H
(&ZE5) 458,895 13,464 13,824 (65,025) 421,158
Profit and total comprehensive FRENRZERLEHE
income for the year - - - 186,825 186,825
Dividend paid BERRE 5 - - (119,492) (119,492)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H 458,895 13,464 13,824 2,308 488,491
Note: Special reserve represents the difference between the MisE - HRlEEERERNE AR ZRAEARDG

equity of subsidiary and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant

to the group reorganisation in 2012.

BERTEBRZAEEEN T ——FR
BEEBAIMRD 2 Z5E

Annual Report 2019 —B—hEFH
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LU 2 T

RESULTS ¥E

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-NE ZB-N\§F —FT—+F —F-F —FT-If
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT ARETT AREBETIT ARBTIL
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(#2EE751) (FE75) (#&E=75) (FZE75)

Revenue Yzs 885,407 918,514 829,515 522,881 315,845
Profit before taxation BB AT 333,084 449,852 398,238 124,910 15,529
Income tax expense PrE BRI = (36,213) (7,888) (10,422) (3,790) (3,833)
Profit for the year FEHEF 296,871 441,964 387,816 121,120 11,696
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-NE ZB-N\E T+ —F-RF —T-IfF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETRE ARETR ARETRI ARETR
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(f=&51) (/=E5) (f=&5) =27

Total assets BEE 4,330,957 1,598,230 1,238,808 694,352 118,641

Total liabilities wRE (2,691,711)  (138,116)  (418,670)  (287,053) (47,527)

Total equity RS E 1,639,246 1,460,114 820,138 407,299 71,114

Note: Financial figures for 2015 to 2018 are restated from HK dollars i3t @ ARAEER —_ZT - ENNER 2 EEEGME
to RMB due to the change in functional and presentation g M- -AFE_ZT - \FHNYBEERFTHEE
currency of the Group in 2019. BIAARE -

164 China Baofeng (International) Limited B %% (EE) R AT



BENWEY  China Baofeng (International) Limited
= hEEE (BB BRA2T



	封面

	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理層履歷詳情
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底




